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Corporate Vision
Distinguished deposit protection contributing to financial system stability by 2025.

Mission Statement
To protect deposits, enhance public confidence and stability in the financial system by 
promoting sound business practices and speedy resolution of failed contributory 
institutions.

Our Values
To achieve the above, the Deposit Protection Corporation is guided by the following 
core values.

We take full ownership and responsibility for our actions. We 
adhere to sound corporate governance principles and are 
disciplined in thought and conduct.
We fairly implement our mandates and treat all our stakeholders 
with equity. We create a level playing field that allows every 
stakeholder to contribute to economic development.
We are co-operative. We are open to different views and
we value diversity. We listen and share ideas. We recognize and 
work with partners to accomplish our goals. We continually raise 
our interpersonal skills and positively interact to deliver 
breakthrough results. We value and engage our stakeholders and 
publics.
We hold ourselves up to the highest ethical and professional 
standards. We conduct ourselves in a transparent and ethical 
manner. We are honest and serve with diligence and commitment.
We are exemplary and model the way in our business. We exceed 
expectations. We are committed and always give our best. We 
develop a reputation for excellence in all we do.
We hold ourselves to the highest level of openness in whatever we 
do and will disseminate all information necessary to enable our 
stakeholders to make informed decisions in their dealings with us.

Accountability  - 

Fairness   -  

Teaming   - 

Integrity   - 

Excellence   -  

Transparency  - 

Vision, Mission & Values
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Corporate Information

REGISTERED OFFICES
Evelyn House

No. 26 Fife Avenue/Cnr. Blakiston Street
P. O. Box 7390

Harare, ZIMBABWE

CONTACTS
Phone: +263 242 250900/1

Fax: +263 242 252336
Website: www.dpcorp.co.zw
E-mail: info@dpcorp.co.zw

Twitter: @DpcZW
Facebook: www.facebook.com/dpczw

AUDITORS
Baker Tilly Chartered Accountants

ATTORNEYS
Mhishi Nkomo Legal Practice

BANKERS
Commercial Bank of Zimbabwe

Stanbic Bank Zimbabwe
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Chairperson's Statement

It is my pleasure to present the Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC/Corporation) Annual Report for the year ended 31 
December 2021. The Corporation continues to execute its mandate as enshrined in the DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] with 
particular emphasis on protecting  depositors, contributing towards the stability of Zimbabwe’s financial system, and 
stakeholder engagement, among other issues. In executing this mandate, the Corporation contributes to the national 
aspirations as envisaged in the National Development Strategy 1 (2021-2025) and Vision 2030.

The Business Landscape
The year 2021 comprised both positive and negative developments in the operating environment. The International 
Monetary Fund projected global economic growth to have reached 5.9% in 2021 recovering from -3.1% in 2020. While 
the domestic economy remained on a growth trajectory, the global pandemic continued to pose threats to the financial 
sector and the economy. The latter part of the year witnessed resurgent inflationary pressures and volatilities induced 
by parallel market activities and global factors. These experiences threatened to derail the economy and financial 
stability. 
 
Navigating the COVID-19 Impact
The year 2021 continued to be faced with unprecedented challenges given the global COVID-19 pandemic. Thus, staff 
has largely been working from home since March 2020. The Corporation made a seamless transition to remote working 
and came up with a working from home policy, with staff showing continued determination and enthusiasm despite 
operating in a virtual environment.

Financial Highlights for the Year 2021

 
 
 
 

Total Income
 
Cost to Income 
 
Surplus/(Deficit)
 
Total Assets
 
Accumulated Fund

2021
ZWL

691,345,026

18%

514,342,972

910,355,531

649,900,921

2020

118,156,258

29%

56,666,918

306,991,454

135,557,949

2021
ZWL

759,927,542

19.50%

385,238,042

929,338,174

888,146,835

2020

286,219,534

30%

(331,668,676)

522,443,606

502,908,793

HISTORICAL COST INFLATION ADJUSTED

DPC Annual Report 202109



The Corporation recorded an inflation adjusted surplus of ZWL385 million in 2021 recovering from a deficit of ZWL331 
million in 2020. On a historical cost basis, the Corporation achieved a surplus of ZWL514.3 million in 2021 up from 
ZWL56.7 million in 2020. Total income increased by 485% from ZWL118.2 million in 2020 to ZWL691.3 million in 2021. 
The increase, which was driven mainly by premium income, is attributable to a significant increase in the total deposit 
base, as well as the inclusion of premium levied on FCA deposits. The premium rate was also restored to 0.3% from 
0.2%. Other funding sources included rental income and returns from investments. Operating expenses increased from 
ZWL61.6 million in 2020 to ZWL185.5 million in 2021. Due to the positive financial performance, the Corporation was 
able to execute its mandate successfully.

Governance
The Corporation was largely compliant with the requisite legislative and corporate governance requirements 
throughout the review period. The Board was trained on various aspects in order to uphold a high standard of Board 
performance and thus ensure good corporate governance. A Board evaluation exercise was also undertaken. The 
Board drove the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) implementation programme successfully in 2021. The Board has 
put in place strategies that will see further development of the ERM framework in 2022 and beyond. These measures 
include the commencement of the journey to put in place a Quality Management System.

In 2021, the Corporation was tied in first place with a compliance rating of 82%, along with two other organisations, out 
of over ninety institutions, in a regulatory compliance assessment exercise that was undertaken by the Office of the 
President and Cabinet’s Corporate Governance Unit. The results are a testament to the Board and Management’s 
commitment to the rule of law and excellence in as far as compliance with the regulatory framework is concerned.

Appreciation
I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Office of the President and Cabinet, the Ministry of Finance and 
Economic Development and other regulatory stakeholders, the Contributory Institutions, and our industry peers for 
the unwavering support during the reporting period. Let me also extend my appreciation to the DPC Board members, 
management and staff for their resilience, responsiveness, and dedication to duty during the challenging period which 
ensured achievement of our strategic objectives in line with National Development Strategy 1 (2021-2025). 

A. Moyo
Chairman 
  

Chairperson’s Statement (continued)
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Overview 
The Deposit Protection Corporation’s five strategic objectives for 2021 were: to raise premiums amounting to ZWL 
547.3m; to maintain a return on financial assets of 134%; to raise the cumulative recovery rate from 60.6 % to 75%; to 
train eight (8) staff members in bank resolution and deposit protection; and to attain 90% systems automation. The 
Corporation managed to surpass four of its strategic performance targets. 

Operating Environment
The economy was estimated to have registered a 7.8% growth in 2021 after contracting by 5.3% in 2020. Growth was 
mainly driven by a favorable agricultural season and higher mineral commodity prices. Annual inflation maintained a 
downward trajectory for the greater part of the year closing the year at 60.7% in December 2021 compared to 348.6%
in December 2020. However, resurgent inflationary pressures emerged during the latter part of 2021, mainly driven by 
parallel market activities as well as exogenous factors such as rising global oil and food prices. The Reserve Bank of 
Zimbabwe continued implementing the conservative monetary targeting framework to contain money supply growth 
in order to curb inflation.

The COVID-19 pandemic continued to cause threats to the operating environment. The delta variant triggered 
lockdowns that spilled into the early third quarter, with companies having to reduce staff at premises and implemented 
work from home strategies. The fourth quarter saw the emergence of the Omicron variant, thus compounding risks to 
the operating environment both domestically and globally. In Zimbabwe the government instituted various measures 
to contain the pandemic, including lockdowns and the vaccination program.

Banking institutions, however, remained resilient throughout the review period as evidenced by banking sector 
average capital adequacy and tier one ratios of 32.86% and 26.54%, respectively. The average nonperforming loans 
(NPLs) to total loans ratio of 0.94% as at 31 December 2021 remained below the 5% international benchmark. An 
unaudited aggregate banking sector profit of ZWL59.29 billion as at 31 December 2021, reflected a 69.6% increment 
from a profit of ZWL34.95 billion recorded in 2020.

Membership
The membership to the two (2) Deposit Protection Schemes remained at 27, comprising, 21 Contributory Banking 
Institutions (CBIs) and six Deposit Taking Microfinance Institutions (DTMFIs). Membership is mandatory for all 
registered deposit-taking financial institutions to counter cases of adverse selection, where financially weak or 
risk-prone banks choose to join the Deposit Protection Scheme, while financially strong banks opt to stay out, leaving 
depositors without credible protection. Deposit Protection Schemes enhance depositor confidence and  stability in the 
financial system.

Deposit Protection Cover Level
The Corporation maintained the maximum limit of the deposit protection cover for CBIs at ZWL10,000 per depositor 
per deposit class per banking institution. At that cover, 92.3% of the depositors’ accounts valued at ZWL2.9 billion 

ACTING CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REVIEW 
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were covered in full. The maximum deposit protection cover, for DTMFIs remained pegged at ZWL500 per depositor 
per deposit class. At this cover level, 91.3% of the deposit accounts valued at ZWL5.8 million were covered in full.   The 
cover levels fulfilled one of the public policy objectives of ensuring that at least 90% of depositors are fully covered.

Key Developments

Deposit Protection Funding
The main source of funding for the Deposit Protection Corporation's operations is premium income, which is levied 
from member institutions quarterly. Other funding sources include rental income and returns from investments. 

The Corporation currently employs a flat rate premium assessment system to determine the insurance premiums 
payable by each contributory institution (CI). The premium rate was restored at 0.3% from 0.2% of a CI's annual 
average deposits eligible for premium assessment, payable quarterly. A flat premium assessment system for foreign 
currency deposits was adopted to determine premium contributions payable by each contributory institution. A 
gradual increase in the premium rate to match the ZWL rate was adopted which will see a progressive review of the 
premium from 0.15% to 0.30% by December 2023.

The total assessed premium income for the year was ZWL533.8 million, up by 481% from ZWL91.8 million assessed for 
the comparative period in 2020. The increase in the assessed premium income is attributable to a significant increase 
in the total deposit base as well as the inclusion of premium levied on FCA deposits.

Deposit Insurance Payments
DPC payments to depositors take place on two fronts:
     •  The Deposit Protection Fund (DPF) up to the maximum insurable limit;
     •  Liquidation dividends on a pro-rata basis depending on debt recoveries and asset realisation.

Pursuant to its mandate, the Corporation continued compensation of insured depositors of four (4) of the six failed 
banking institutions: namely Allied Bank, Interfin Bank, Afrasia and Trust Bank. Protection payments to Genesis 
Investment Bank and Royal Bank had been closed due to lapse of time.

Acting C.E.O’s Review (continued)

Protection of Foreign Currency Deposits
Following extensive consultations amongst the Bankers Association of Zimbabwe, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe, 
the Ministry of Finance & Economic Development and the Multi-Disciplinary Financial Stability Committee, the 
Corporation established an explicit FCA Deposit Protection Fund with effect from 31 December 2021. The maximum 
deposit protection cover levels for foreign currency deposits are pegged at USD1,000 per depositor class per 
banking institution and USD500 per depositor class per deposit-taking microfinance institution. The foreign 
currency deposits had remained uncovered by the Corporation since the separation of accounts into Zimbabwe 
Dollar (ZWL) and FCA in October 2018. The extension of deposit insurance to FCA account holders is envisaged to 
positively boost depositor confidence in the banking sector and ultimately financial stability. The above 
development implies that compensation to FCA depositors shall be in foreign currency in the event of occurrence 
of a compensation event or bank failure.

Compensation of Loss of Value
In the 2021 National Budget Statement presented in November 2020, the Minister of Finance & Economic 
Development announced that the Government would compensate small and vulnerable depositors who had 
balances of USD1,000 and below for the loss of value incurred during the exchange rate movement from 
USD1:RTGS1 to USD1:RTGS2.5 as at 20 February 2019, with resources equivalent to USD75 million. 
Government through Kuvimba Mining House availed USD400,000, to the Corporation for this exercise and eligible 
depositors from respective DTMFIs were advised to submit their claims from 08 November 2021 to 30 June 2022 
in order to access their compensation. Other deposit-taking institutions will be considered on subsequent tranches.

a.

b.
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Liquidation of Closed Banking Institutions 
During the period under review, the Corporation continued to execute its mandate as a liquidator of closed banking 
institutions through the realization of assets and payment of liquidation dividends to creditors and uninsured 
depositors. The liquidation of Genesis Investment Bank was finalized during the year leaving five closed banking 
institutions under the purview of DPC. At 80 % recovery rate and dividend of 78%, DPC  surpassed the respective 
annual targets of 75% and 60%.

Financial Literacy and Financial Inclusion
As a key player of the National Financial Inclusion Forum, the Corporation played its role in attending meetings and 
driving the objectives of the Forum. Informational pamphlets were translated into Kalanga language in addition to 
current versions available namely Shona, English, Ndebele, Tonga, Chewa, braille, and sign language videos to cater 
for the deaf. Videos were made to cater for the deaf and braille were updated for the visually impaired to learn and 
understand the role and importance of deposit insurance. These initiatives contributed greatly to public confidence in 
the financial system. As a member of the National Financial Inclusion Forum thematic group on people living with 
disabilities, the DPC helps to reinforce the nation’s commitment to ensure that no-one is left behind in financial 
inclusion.

Public Awareness
Public awareness is critical to protecting depositors and contributing to financial stability. For a Deposit Protection 
Scheme (DPS) to be effective, the public should be informed on an ongoing basis about the benefits and limitations of 
the scheme. The Corporation utilized online platforms to engage different audiences to celebrate the global Customer 
Service Week. Different campaigns were advertised through national and regional newspapers, radio stations and 
national television providing increased brand exposure. The easing of lockdown restrictions allowed the Corporation 
to participate in physical events such as the Zimbabwe Agricultural Show and the Zimbabwe International Trade Fair 
(ZITF). Collaboration with the Chartered Governance Institute and International Compliance Association resulted in the 
launch and recruitment of students for the Governance, Risk and Compliance Diploma. Engagements with universities 
were also undertaken with a view to introduce the deposit insurance module in university curricula. 

Risk Management
The Corporation achieved significant milestones in Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) implementation in 2021 
focusing particularly on areas identified in the risk management capability gap analysis. Key ERM enablers which were 
developed include; the ERM risk management policy, risk appetite statement, risk categorisation framework, ERM 
Handbook, operational risk policy, Key Risk Indicators (KRIs), Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), risk work plan and risk 
strategy.

Stakeholder Engagements
The Corporation is a member of the Multi-Disciplinary Financial Stability Committee, which includes the Reserve Bank 
of Zimbabwe, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Zimbabwe, and the Insurance and Pensions Commission of 
Zimbabwe. The Corporation will continue to play an active role in the country's financial safety net by ensuring the 
effective discharge of its mandate. 

On the international front, the Corporation is an active member of the International Association of Deposit Insurers 
(IADI) and continues to contribute to its activities. To effectively deliver its mandate as a pay box plus, the Corporation 
will continue to participate in all IADI activities and work closely with other jurisdictions.

The Corporation signed a cooperative arrangement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation of the United 
States of America which focuses on information sharing and capacity building, among other objectives. The 
Corporation also finalised preparations for undertaking the IADI Self-Assessment Technical Assistance Program 

Acting C.E.O’s Review (continued)
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(SATAP) scheduled for 2022. This is meant to enhance compliance with the IADI Core Principles thus assisting in 
attaining world class standards in deposit insurance.

Financial Performance
The Corporation recorded an inflation adjusted surplus of ZWL385.2 million in 2021 recovering from a deficit of 
ZWL331.6 million in 2020. On a historical cost basis, the Corporation achieved a surplus of ZWL514.3 million in 2021 up 
from ZWL56.7 million in 2020. Operating expenses increased from ZWL61.6 million in 2020 to ZWL185.5 million in 
2021. The cost to income ratio was 18% and 19.50% based on historical and inflation adjusted accounts respectively. 
Due to the positive financial performance, the Corporation was able to execute its mandate successfully.

Outlook
The Corporation remains focused on achieving its statutory objectives in conformity with the highest standards of 
corporate governance, integrity, and accountability to relevant stakeholders. The value of a deposit protection system 
is underpinned by its clear mandate to protect depositors and contributing to public confidence in the financial system. 
Protection of deposits promotes public confidence in the banking system by reducing the likelihood of panic and bank 
runs. Thus, deposit protection systems enhance stability of the financial system. 

This said, there is need to continue striking an appropriate balance among internal and external stakeholders to ensure 
effective performance of DPC’s statutory role and functions. To maintain an adequate pool of highly competent talents 
with the right attitudes, culture, and values, the DPC envisages a strategic human capital plan incorporating talent 
management, leadership development, learning organisation, and employee engagement.  The Corporation will 
continue to invest in the development of electronic reimbursements platforms and promote adoption of a Single 
Customer View to enhance data integrity in the banking sector. DPC will continue to engage relevant stakeholders for 
the promulgation of an amended DPC Act providing for an effective bank insolvency regime. Maturation of the 
Enterprise Risk Management system will empower the Corporation to attain greater efficiency in performing its core 
functions.

Acknowledgement
I want to express my heartfelt gratitude to  the Board for their guidance and oversight. I would also like to express my 
appreciation to the Government of Zimbabwe, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe (RBZ), contributory institutions, 
depositors in general, and the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI) for their unwavering support. Finally, 
I would also like to extend sincere appreciation to DPC management and staff for their invaluable support and efforts 
towards the attainment of the Corporation’s objectives.

G. Chirozva
Acting Chief Executive Officer
  

Acting C.E.O’s Review (continued)
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors of the Deposit Protection Corporation recognizes the importance of good corporate 
governance and is committed to conducting the business of the Corporation with integrity and in line with best 
corporate governance practices. The Corporation continues to conform, in all material respects, to all laws and 
regulations governing its operations. It subscribes to principles of International Best Practice as guided by, inter alia, 
the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI) Core Principles for Effective Deposit Insurance Systems (Core 
Principles) and the Public Entities Corporate Governance Act (Chapter 10: 31).

DPC’s terms of reference
The Deposit Protection Corporation derives its terms of reference directly and indirectly from the following 
instruments:

 a) Banking Act [Chapter 24:20]
 b) Building Societies Act [Chapter 24:02]
 c) Consumer Protection Act [Chapter 14:44]
 d) Deposit Protection Corporation Act [Chapter 24:29]
 e) Deposit Protection Corporation Regulations, 2013 [S.I 156/2013]
 f) DPC Public Policy Objectives
 g) Finance Act [Chapter 23:04]
 h) IADI Core Principles
 i) Micro Finance Act [Chapter 24:30] National Development Strategy 1 (NDS1)
 j) Public Entities and Corporate Governance Act [Chapter 10:31]
 k) Public Finance Management Act [Chapter 22:19]
 l) Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act [Chapter 22:23]

DPC Strategy 
The Board of Directors is responsible for setting and reviewing the strategic direction of the Corporation, 
implementation of that strategy by Management, overall conduct of the Corporation’s business including overseeing 
its governance, risk management and control frameworks. The DPC Strategy was successfully implemented within the 
guidelines of the National Development Strategy 1 (NDS1) during the period under review.
Board composition

Board composition
Section 6(1) of the Deposit Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29) (the Act) which provides that the operations of 
the Corporation shall be controlled by a Board of Directors consisting of 
 a) One (1) Director to represent the Ministry of Finance
 b) One (1) Director to represent the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe
 c) Four (4) Directors to represent contributory institutions, and
 d) The Chief Executive Officer

The Board was fully compliant with this provision during the period under review. 
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Name 

Agmos
Moyo
John
Mafararikwa
Amon
Manzai
Sithembile
P. Pilime
Judith
J. Rusike
Vimbai
Nyemba
Vusilizwe
Vuma

Gender

Male

Male

Male

Female

Female

Female

Male

Position 

Chair

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

CEO (ex- officio)

Date of Appointment/
reappointment

03/09/20

16/12/20

28/05/19

18/09/17

03/09/20

03/09/20

01/07/19

No. of terms

2

1

1

1

2

2

1

Board Committees
The Board Committees continued to play a crucial role in assisting the Board in discharging its mandate. The Board has 
established and delegated specific roles and responsibilities to four (4) Committees which are guided by terms of 
reference as approved by the Board and subject to review where necessary. The Committees are chaired by 
non-executive Directors of the Board with Executive Management attending meetings by invitation. The Committees 
met quarterly in accordance with their terms of reference. The Committee Chairpersons updated the full Board on 
agenda items covered and the resolutions passed by their respective Committees. 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

HUMAN
RESOURCES
COMMITTEE

RISK &
RESOLUTION
COMMITTEE

FINANCE &
INVESTMENTS

COMMITTEE

Board members

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Board Committees’ terms of reference were aligned with the provisions of the Public Entities Corporate 
Governance Act [Chapter 10:31] and the Public Entities Corporate Governance (General) Regulations 2018 published in 
Statutory Instrument 168 of 2018.  DPC also complied with the law with regards to gender balance, regional and skills 
mix as well as expertise. 

Gender Balance

In accordance with section 11(7) of the Public Entities Corporate Governance Act [Chapter 10:31], the DPC Board of 
Directors is composed of an equal number of males and females of which none of them sits on more than two public 
entity boards. The members are drawn from a diversity of professional fields and possess relevant skills to enrich DPC. 
The membership is a fair representation of Zimbabwe’s geographic regions. 

Board training and evaluation
Training of Board members is not only provided for by the law, but it is also of strategic importance to the Corporation. 
Training board members on corporate governance best practices, changes in the law, and on how to effectively 
discharge their duties means that the Corporation benefits from a competent, engaged and dynamic board. To this 
end, the board was trained on these aspects and a board evaluation exercise was also undertaken where the Board 
members evaluated themselves, their peers, the Committees, the CEO, the Chairman, and overall Board performance.  

Analysis of Board and Committee Attendance Registers
The Board met four (4) times during the accounting year for quarterly meetings. The following is the Board meetings’ 
attendance register for 2021:

Main Board

Name of Director

Mr. A. Moyo (Chairperson)
Mrs J. J. Rusike
Mr. J. Mafararikwa
Mrs. V. Nyemba
Mr. A. Manzai
Ms. S. P. Pilime
Mr. V. Vuma

Meetings Held

4
4
4
4
4
4
4

Meetings Attended

4
4
3
4
4
4
4

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Finance and Investments Committee

Name of Director

Ms. S. Pilime (Chairperson)
Mrs J. Rusike
Mr. J. Mafararikwa
Mr. A. Manzai
Mr. A. Moyo

Meetings Held

4
4
4
4
4

Meetings Attended

4
4
3
4
4

Audit Committee

Name of Director

Mr. A Manzai (Chairperson)
Mr. J. Mafararikwa
Mrs. J. Rusike
Mrs. V. Nyemba
Ms. S. Pilime

Meetings Held

4
4
4
4
4

Meetings Attended

4
3
4
3
4

Human Resources Committee

Name of Director

Mrs. V. Nyemba (Chairperson)
Mrs. J. Rusike
Ms. S. Pilime
Mr. A. Moyo

Meetings Held

4
4
4
1

Meetings Attended

4
4
4
1

Risk and Resolution Committee

Name of Director

Mr. J. Mafararikwa (Chairperson)
Mr. A. Manzai
Mr. A. Moyo
Ms. S. Pilime
Mrs. V. Nyemba

Meetings Held

4
4
4
4
4

Meetings Attended

2
4
4
4
3

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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In addition to the scheduled board and committee meetings outlined above, the Board members achieved 100% 
attendance for the 2020 AGM, Ministerial, strategy, training, and board evaluation meetings.

Resignation and appointment of Directors
During the year, the Corporation’s Finance and Administration Director Mr. Munyaradzi Mike Chingosho retired on the 
31st of May 2021. Mr Chingosho joined the Corporation in October 2003 and served the Corporation with distinction 
for 18 years. We thank Mr. M. M. Chingosho for his excellent service to the Corporation. The Corporation appointed Mr. 
Caleb Phiri as the new Finance and Administration Director effective August 2021. The retirement and appointment of 
Mr. Chingosho’s successor were carried out in terms of the provisions of the law.

Enterprise- Risk Management (ERM).
The Board drove the ERM implementation programme successfully in 2021. These efforts resulted in the Corporation’s 
ERM attaining maturity ‘level 2’ during the period under review. The board has put in place strategies that will see 
further development of the ERM framework in 2022 and beyond.  

DPC Budget utilisation.
The Corporation was able to successfully carry out its mandate within the confines of its approved operational budget. 
This was in spite of a harsh economic environment characterised by dual pricing and hyperinflation. Further, the 
Corporation overly succeeded in conducting procurement activities as planned and in terms of the provisions of the 
Public Procurement and Disposal of Public Assets Act [Chapter 22:23]. 

In addition, in accordance with the law and corporate governance best practice, no non- executive board members 
were awarded any loans, allowances or any kind of remuneration outside of the regulated board remuneration 
framework. The remuneration of all employees and senior staff members was paid within the thresholds of regulatory 
and budgetary approvals.

Statutory offices
The DPC’s organogram was designed to not only cater for its staffing needs to enable the Corporation to meet its 
strategic objectives, but to also align the Corporation to the regulatory framework. In that regard, during the period 
under review, statutory positions such as the Chief Executive Officer, Corporate Secretary, those constituting the 
Procurement Management Unit, Internal Audit and Compliance officer were occupied by competent individuals. 

Compliance self-assessment 
In 2021, the Corporation was tied in first place, along with two other organisations, out of over ninety institutions, in a 
regulatory compliance assessment exercise that was undertaken by the Office of the President and Cabinet’s 
Corporate Governance Unit. The results are a testament to the Board and Management’s commitment to the rule of 
law and excellence in as far as compliance with the regulatory framework is concerned.  
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Statement of Compliance

Based on the information set out in the 
Legal and Corporate Affairs report, the 
Corporation complied with the requisite 
legislative and corporate governance 
requirements throughout the accounting 
period.
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1. Membership and Scope of Coverage 

The membership to the two (2) Deposit Protection Schemes remained at 27, i.e., 21 Contributory Banking 
Institutions (CBIs) and six Deposit Taking Microfinance Institutions (DTMFIs). Membership is mandatory for all 
registered deposit-taking financial institutions to counter cases of adverse selection, where financially weak or 
risk-prone banks choose to join the Deposit Protection Scheme, while financially strong banks opt to stay out, 
leaving depositors without credible protection. Deposit Protection Schemes enhance depositor confidence and 
financial stability in the financial system.

The architecture of membership to the Deposit Protection Scheme was as shown in the table 1 below.

Table 1: Membership to the DPC Fund as at 31 December 2021

Number

13
5
1
1
1
6
27

Type of Institution

Commercial Banks
Building Societies
*Merchant Banks
Savings Bank
Infrastructure Development Bank
Deposit-Taking Micro-Finance Institutions [DTMFIs]
Total

*Not taking deposits.

Members to the Deposit Protection Scheme are banking institutions registered under the auspices of the Banking 
Act [Chapter 24:20], Building Societies Act [Chapter 24:02], Microfinance Act [Chapter 24:30] for Deposit-Taking 
Microfinance Institutions [DTMFIs], Infrastructure Development Bank of Zimbabwe Act [Chapter 24:14] and 
People’s Own Savings Bank Act [Chapter 24:22].

Tetrad Investment Bank Limited has not been taking any deposits. The bank has not been operational since its 
removal from Provisional Judicial Management and subsequent handing over to its management in October 2018. 
The bank is still scouting for an investor to commence banking operations.  

Business Operations
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2. Deposit Protection Funding
The main source of funding for the Deposit Protection Corporation’s operations is premium income, which is 
levied from member institutions on a quarterly basis. Other funding sources included rental income and returns 
from investments.

The Corporation currently employs a flat rate premium assessment system to determine the insurance premiums 
payable by each contributory institution (CI). The premium rate was restored at 0.3% from 0.2% of a CI’s annual 
average deposits eligible for premium assessment, payable quarterly.

Total assessed premium income for the year was ZWL533.8 million, up by 481% from ZWL91.8 million assessed 
for the comparative period in 2020. The increase in the assessed premium income is attributable to a significant 
increase in the total deposit base as well as the inclusion of premium levied on FCA deposits.

3. Deposit Protection Coverage
3.1. Deposit Cover Level for Contributory Banking Institutions (CBIs)

The Corporation maintained the maximum limit of the deposit protection cover for CBIs at ZWL10,000 per 
depositor per deposit class per banking institution. At that cover, 92.3% of the depositors’ accounts valued at 
ZWL2.9 billion were covered in full as reflected in the Table 2 below.

Table 2: Deposit Protection Cover for the CBIs as at 31 December 2021 (ZWL)

Item

Total Number of Deposit Accounts
Total Number of Deposit Accounts Fully Covered.
Total Number of Deposit Accounts Partially Covered.
Value of Deposits in Fully Covered Accounts
Value of Deposits in Partially Covered Accounts.
Total Value of Insured Deposits
Total  Value of Deposits

December 2021

5,871,908
5,419,591
452,317
ZWL2.9 billion
ZWL225.2 billion
ZWL7.4 billion
ZWL228.1 billion

Percentage

100%
92.3%
7.7%
1.3%
98.7%
3.2%
100%

The total number of depositor accounts at CBIs was 5.9 million as at end of December 2021, up from 5,3 million 
reported in December 2020. The increase in depositor accounts was as a result of aggressive marketing of 
low-cost accounts via digital platforms by member institutions.

3.2. Deposit Cover Level for Deposit Taking Microfinance Institutions (DTMFIs)
The maximum deposit protection cover for DTMFIs remained pegged at ZWL500 per depositor per deposit class. 
At this cover level, 91.3% of the deposit accounts valued at ZWL5.8 million were covered in full.  

The number of deposit accounts increased from 150,989 in December 2020, to 201,828 in December 2021 due to 
intensive marketing by the DTMFIs. Table 3 below indicates key statistics for the sector.
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Table 3: Deposit Protection Cover for DTMFIs as at 31 December 2021(ZWL)

Item

Total Number of Deposit Accounts
Total Number of Deposit Accounts Fully Covered
Total Number of Deposit Accounts Partially Covered
Value of Deposits in Fully Covered Accounts
Value of Deposits in Partially Covered Accounts
Total Value of Insured Deposits
Total Value of Deposits

December 2021

201,828
184,253
17,575
ZWL5.8 million
ZWL505.7 million
ZWL14.6 million
ZWL511.5 million

Percentage

100%
91.3%
8.7%
1.1%
98.9%
2.9%
100%

4. Deposit Growth 

Total deposits eligible for premium assessment were ZWL228.7 billion for all CIs (including DTMFIs), up 151.6% 
from ZWL90.9 billion reported as at end of December 2020. The high growth in the ZWL deposits is attributable 
to exchange rate and inflation developments in the economy.

Figure 1 below shows each sub-sector’s trend of deposits eligible for premium assessment for the year ended 31 
December 2021.

5. Distribution and Average Deposit Sizes 

The DTMFI sector recorded the lowest average deposit size of ZWL2,534.3, whilst the building societies 
subsector recorded the highest average deposit size of ZWL55,188. Table 4 below shows the distribution of 
deposits by sector as at 31 December 2021.
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Table 4: Distribution and Average size of by Sector as at 31 December 2021

Year

No. of Institutions
No. of Accounts
Total Deposits (ZWL millions)
Average Deposit Size (ZWL)

No. of Institutions
No. of Accounts
Total Deposits (ZWL millions)
Average Deposit Size (ZWL)

No. of institutions
No. of Accounts 
Total Deposits (ZWL millions)
Average Deposit Size (ZWL)

No. of institutions
No. of Accounts 
Total Deposits (ZWL millions)
Average Deposit Size (ZWL)

No. of Institutions
No. of Accounts
Total Deposits (ZWL millions)
Average Deposits Size (ZWL)

No. of institutions
No. of Accounts 
Total Deposits (ZWL millions)
Average Deposit Size (ZWL)

2021
Commercial Banks
13
4,330,795
195,736.5
45,196.4

Building Societies
5
510,227
28,158.4
55,188

Merchant Banks & Development Banks
2
7,560
283.2
37,460.3

Deposit-Taking Microfinance Institutions
6
201,828
511.5
2,534.3

Savings Bank
1
1,023,326
3,964.8
3,874.4

Market Aggregate
27
6,073,736
228,654.3
37,646.4
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6. Sectorial Distribution of Deposits 
The deposit taking financial institutions’ deposits remained concentrated in the commercial bank sub-sector, 
which constituted 86% of the total deposits of ZWL228.7 billion for all CIs. Figure 2 below shows market share of 
deposits by sub sector as at 31 December 2021.

Figure 2: Market Share of Deposits by sub-sector as at 31 December 2021

7. Deposit Composition

The banking sector’s deposits eligible for premium assessment were dominated by demand and savings 
deposits. Demand deposits were ZWL219.8 billion, whilst savings deposits were ZWL6.7 billion, which accounted 
for 85.6% and 6.7% of the total deposit base, respectively. Figure 3 below illustrate the composition of deposits 
in the banking sector as at 31 December 2021.

Figure 3: Deposit Composition as at 31 December 2021
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8. Key developments

8.1. Protection of Foreign Currency Deposits
Following extensive consultations amongst the Bankers Association of Zimbabwe (BAZ), the Reserve Bank of 
Zimbabwe, the Ministry of Finance & Economic Development and the Multi-Disciplinary Financial Stability 
Committee, the Corporation established an explicit FCA Deposit Protection Fund with effect from 31 December 
2021.
 
The protection of FCA deposits is in accordance with best practice as enshrined in the International Association 
of Deposit Insurers (IADI) Core Principles for Effective Deposit Insurance Systems (CPs) especially Core Principle 
# 8, Essential Criteria numbers 7 and 9. In CP8 EC7: “The residency status or nationality of depositors has no 
effect on coverage.” According to CP8 EC9: “Foreign currency deposits are insured if they are widely used in a 
jurisdiction.” As a member of IADI, Zimbabwe thus strives to provide protection to both ZWL and FCA deposits 
at levels consistent with the deposit insurance system’s public policy objectives. 

A flat premium assessment system was adopted to determine premium contributions payable by each 
contributory institution. A gradual increase in the premium rate to match the ZWL rate was adopted as follows: 
0.15% from December 2021 to September 2022; 0.20% from December 2022 to September 2023 and 0.30% 
from December 2023. The maximum deposit protection cover levels were pegged at USD1,000.00 (One 
thousand united states dollars) per depositor class per banking institution and USD500.00 (five hundred united 
states dollars) per depositor class per deposit taking microfinance institution, with effect from 01 January 2022.
The foreign currency deposits had remained uncovered by the Corporation since the separation of accounts into 
Zimbabwe Dollar (ZWL) and FCA in October 2018. The extension of deposit insurance to Nostro account holders 
is envisaged to positively boost depositor confidence in the banking sector and ultimately financial stability. The 
above development implies that compensation to Nostro FCA depositors shall be in foreign currency in the event 
of occurrence of a compensation event or bank failure.

8.2. Compensation of Loss of Value
In the 2021 National Budget Statement presented in November 2020, the Minister of Finance & Economic 
Development announced that the Government would compensate small and vulnerable depositors who had 
balances of USD1,000 and below for the loss of value incurred during the exchange rate movement from 
USD1:RTGS1 to USD1:RTGS2.5 as at 20 February 2019, with resources equivalent to USD75 million.
 
Government through Kuvimba Mining House availed USD400,000 (four hundred Thousand United States 
Dollars) to the Corporation (DPC) for the compensation of small depositors for the loss of value incurred due to 
the exchange rate movement. In view of the available resources, the Corporation allocated this initial tranche of 
USD400,000 to eligible depositors in Deposit Taking Microfinance Institutions (DTMFIs). The eligible depositors 
were required to submit their claims from 08 November 2021 to 30 June 2022 to their respective DTMFI for 
further processing. It is envisaged that subsequent tranches of disbursements would be allocated to other 
deposit -taking institutions namely commercial banks, building societies, savings bank and infrastructure bank as 
and when funds are made available.
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BANK RESOLUTION, RECOVERIES & INVESTIGATIONS

The Deposit Protection Corporation (“DPC” / “the Corporation”) was appointed Liquidator of six (6) failed 
contributory banking institutions (CBIs). Another failed institution, Capital Bank, was closed in June 2014 and 
was eventually placed under provisional liquidation on 9 October 2019 and in Final Liquidation on 31 March 
2021. During the period under review, the Corporation continued its resolution of six banks under liquidation. 
The Corporation successfully completed the liquidation of Genesis Investment Bank on 7 October 2021.

The failure resolution options that the Corporation utilized during the review period were depositor 
reimbursements and liquidations.

Liquidation dividends were paid out to concurrent creditors of two (2) closed banks during the year 2021, 
namely, Interfin and Afrasia banks, whilst a dividend of about ZWL3.4 million was paid to shareholders of 
Genesis Bank after concurrent creditors had been paid in full.

9. DEPOSIT INSURANCE PAYMENTS
DPC payments to depositors take place on two fronts:
� ���The Deposit Protection Fund (DPF) up to the maximum insurable limit;
� ���Liquidation dividends on a pro-rata basis depending on debt recoveries and asset realisation.

Pursuant to its mandate, the Corporation continued compensation of insured depositors of four (4) of the six 
failed banking institutions: namely Allied Bank, Interfin Bank, Afrasia and Trust Bank.
Table 5 below provides a synopsis of deposit insurance payments in respect of the failed contributory 
institutions in final liquidation.

Table 5: Deposit Insurance Payments as at 31 December 2021

Name
of Institution

Royal Bank
Trust Bank
Genesis
Allied Bank
Interfin Bank
Afrasia
Total

Total
Depositors

5,453
2,958
86
9,228
13,021
24,163
54,909

No. of
Depositors
Paid

3,111
1,041
62
2,080
2,742
14,206
23,242

Exposure
Deposits
Payable at
ZWL500(ZWL)

472,207
328,516
11,810
1,248,307
918,814
3,439,276
6,418,930

Value of
Depositors
Paid (ZWL)

358,654
169,877
8,821
614,433
326,774
2,564,947
4,043,506

% of Total
Deposits

76%
52%
75%
49.22%
35%
75%
63%

Gross
\Deposits

5,538,805
11,482,102
  1,426,913
14,316,614
137,336,570
18,559,591
188,660,594
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9.1. Reimbursement Trends
As at 31 December 2021, DPC had reimbursed 23,242 out of 54,909 depositors of the six banks currently in 
liquidation, whilst in monetary terms, about ZWL4.04 million (63%) had been paid out as deposit insurance 
payments to depositors of the six closed banks. Depositors were paid using bank transfers, cash or through 
mobile platforms. The mobile platforms have been very popular with most of our depositors with small balances 
and those who reside in remote areas.
 
The graphs below show the trends in the number and value of deposit insurance payments from 2013 to 2021.

The charts below show the individual banks’ share of reimbursements against the total reimbursements as at 31 
December 2021.
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Afrasia Bank had the highest payout amount of ZWL2.6 million, which translates to 64% of the total amount paid 
to depositors (ZWL4.04 million) of the six banks as at 31 December 2021.

In terms of number of depositors paid to date, Afrasia Bank also had the highest number of depositors paid of 
14,206 (61%) out of the 23, 242 depositors paid for the six banks under liquidation. Genesis Bank had the least 
number of depositors compensated due to its low deposit base. 

One of the major hindrances in contacting depositors has been the poor quality of depositor records at banks 
such that the contact details like addresses, phone numbers and e-mails are not up to date. The Corporation is 
therefore working with the Central Bank to implement a Single Customer View framework which will resolve the 
perennial problem of incomplete depositor records and enhance payouts. Furthermore, the value of the 
maximum insured amount of ZWL500 applicable to the closed banks has been eroded by inflation which makes 
it uneconomical for depositors with small balances to submit their claims.

10. LIQUIDATION OF CLOSED BANKS
During the period under review, the Corporation continued to execute its mandate as liquidator of closed banks 
through the realization of assets and payment of liquidation dividends to creditors and uninsured depositors. 
DPC is currently undertaking the Liquidation of five closed banks following the finalization of the liquidation of 
Genesis Investment Bank. Total recoveries in cash, treasury bills and properties were ZWL217 million, which 
translate to an 80% recovery rate as at 31 December 2021.  Total dividends paid out to creditors of the six (6) 
failed CBIs under liquidation increased by 64% from ZWL66.8 million in December 2020 to ZWL109.4 million in 
December 2021 despite disruptions to recovery program due to the Covid-19 pandemic. This translates to an 
average dividend payout of ZWL0.78 per dollar to concurrent creditors.

The Corporation is still pursuing aggressive recovery strategies which include acceptance of cash and 
immovable assets. Discussions are also ongoing with some of the former shareholders of closed banks for out 
of court settlements. The specific status of each banking institution under resolution is discussed hereunder:

10.1. GENESIS INVESTMENT BANK (Liquidation completed): 7 October 2021
Following payment of concurrent creditors in full inclusive of interest, and payment of about ZWL3.4 million to 
shareholders from the Fifth and Final Account, the Master released the Corporation as liquidator of the bank on 
7 October 2021.

10.2. ROYAL BANK LIMITED: (In Final liquidation) - Closed 27 July 2012
As at 31 December 2021 a total of ZWL938, 275 had been paid to preferred creditors from the two dividend 
payouts whilst ZWL207, 931 was paid to a secured creditor. To date no further payments have been made to 
creditors of Royal Bank due to the low recovery rate. It is highly unlikely that the bank will pay any dividend in 
2022 unless the case against parties at fault succeeds. Discussions are ongoing with the former shareholders 
for a possible out of court settlement.

10.3. TRUST BANK CORPORATION (In Final Liquidation): Closed 6 Dec 2013
As at report date, about ZWL1.5 million has been paid to preferred creditors whilst concurrent creditors have 
been paid ZWL6.6 million or ZWL0.41 per dollar from the five (5) dividend payouts. Secured creditors have so 
far been paid a total of ZWL834, 043. Recovery efforts are ongoing and the bank is also in discussion with the 
former shareholders who wish to pay off the bank’s liabilities in exchange for the outstanding unrealised assets.

10.4. INTERFIN BANK (In Final Liquidation): Closed 31 December 2014
As at 31 December 2021, about ZWL1.7 million had been paid out as dividend to the bank’s preferred creditors 
whilst concurrent creditors were paid ZWL43.5 million or ZWL0.51 per dollar from the eleven dividend payouts. 
About ZWL18 million was paid to secured creditors. The bank is in the process of disposing some of its assets 
and a twelfth dividend is likely to be paid out during the first half of 2022.
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10.5. ALLIED BANK (In Final Liquidation): Closed 8-Jan-2015
As at report date, the bank had only paid ZWL436, 357 and ZWL558, 379 to secured and preferred creditors 
respectively. Trebor & Khays paid ZWL16.7 million on 16 December 2021 in favour of Allied Bank (in liquidation) 
in full and final settlement of the bank’s claim under case number HC/8287/15. Following receipt of these funds, 
concurrent creditors will be paid about ZWL 11.5 million in full inclusive of interest during the first quarter of 
2022.

Capital Bank was placed in provisional liquidation on 9 October 2019 and in Final Liquidation on 31 March 
2021.The first creditors meeting of the Bank was held on 17 November 2021. About 6 creditors proved their 
claims valued about ZWL 231 million in the first meeting. According to the Liquidator’s report the bank had a net 
liability position of USD21.4 million (ZWL 21.4m) as at 31 December 2013. After considering all known claims and 
expenses, including employee salaries now at ZWL219m, Renaissance Financial Holdings ZWL10m, ZAMCO/PTA 
ZWL10.5m, and Dawn Properties ZWL 2.4m, the likelihood of a contribution is next to nil. The actual and 
estimated costs are expected to be covered in full by realization of assets. Table 6 below summarizes the status 
of banks under resolution as at 31 December 2021.

Cumulatively, the bank’s concurrent creditors have been paid ZWL38.44 million or 100 cents per dollar whilst 
preferred creditors have received ZWL3.5 million in nine (9) dividend payouts. The Tenth and Final Liquidation 
& Distribution Account will be prepared once there are adequate funds to cover interest payments to creditors, 
Liquidator fees and Master’s fees. Any residue thereafter will be paid to shareholders.

10.6. CAPITAL BANK (In Provisional Liquidation) - Closed: 4 June 2014

10.7. AFRASIA BANK ZIM LIMITED (In Final Liquidation): Closed 24-Feb-2015
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11. BULAWAYO REGIONAL OFFICE 
The regional office is strategic in that it helps the Corporation to get closer to the stakeholders and it acts as a 
getaway communication channel especially for the Matabeleland and surrounding regions. 

The main thrust of the office during the year 2021 was to promote awareness of deposit insurance within the 
southern region. The office managed to attend the 2021 edition of the Zimbabwe International Trade Fair (ZITF) 
which ran under the theme ‘Showcasing the New Normal for Business and Industries: Realities and 
Opportunities’. A lot of clients visited the Corporation’s stand where they got assisted in various ways. However, 
the feasibility to attend most regional awareness exhibitions was heavily affected by the Covid19 pandemic.
The office actively took part in the bank resolution functions of the Corporation; and these particularly included 
assisting clients of failed banks with compensation related enquiries. 

The opening of deposit insurance regional office dovetail with the government’s thrust of devolution and 
bringing services closer to the people. The office will also help to further the agenda of financial inclusion.
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Internal Control and Systems

Internal Audit played a significant role in verifying and validating whether Management met its responsibilities and if 
internal controls were being complied with. This was carried out by evaluating controls, risk management, business and 
governance processes as well as monitoring whether agreed action plans in line with recommendations for 
improvements in controls, risk management, business and governance processes were implemented. The Key Areas of 
the Board Audit Committee in 2021 were: 

Reviewed internal audit reports concerning the observations and advice in respect of the controls, systems and 
processes.
Obtained an understanding of the financial reports and monitored financial information for accuracy, reliability as 
well as clarity (including its financial statements and the external auditors report).
Considered the information provided in the Annual Report and Strategic Plan. 
Reviewed and provided advice to the Board with respect to the annual financial statements, management’s 
discussion and analysis, the external audit report and the review of the integrity of the financial reporting process 
and internal control reports as well as Management representations; recommended the adoption of the principles 
proposed by Management, which included making the appropriate disclosures. 
Fulfilled its responsibilities with regard to financial management oversight, including management of annual 
budgets and investments. 
Considered and recommended the Strategic Plan 2022 – 2025 that included the operating budget, financial 
projections and capital budget. 
Provided advice and support to the Board in respect of the matters relating to risks and internal control. 
Reviewed the utilization of resources as compared to the Budgets to provide strategic and management 
oversight. The implementation of the Risk Management framework and the update on measures to mitigate 
significant risks ensures that the risk management activities remain appropriate and prudent, and that significant 
risks are managed and monitored continuously within DPC’s risk appetite.
Reviewed the update and progress of Management’s overall performance against initiatives set out in the 
Strategic Plan as well as Management’s assessments of internal and external factors that may impact the 
performance of the Strategic Plan.

•

•

•
•

•

•

•
•

•

The Board Audit Committee noted the issues raised in audit reports and the Management’s action to improve the 
systems of internal control. Otherwise, there were no major reported incidences or weaknesses or deficiencies in the 
adequacy and integrity of internal controls embedded in the Deposit Protection Corporation’s systems, policies, 
practices and processes for the period to 31st December, 2021. 
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Enterprise Risk Management

The Corporation`s strategic thrust is to advance ERM capabilities, processes, methodologies, systems, people and 
organisation to level 3 in the short term and to optimised level 5 in the medium to long-term as measured by the risk 
maturity rating criteria. The ERM framework is built on the ISO 31000 Standards. The Corporation achieved significant 
milestones in ERM implementation in 2021 focusing particularly on areas identified in the risk management capability 
gap analysis. The following key ERM enablers were developed; ERM risk management policy, risk appetite statement, 
risk categorisation framework, ERM Handbook, operational risk policy, Key Risk Indicators (KRIs), Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs), risk work plan and risk strategy.

The offshoots of embeddedness of the risk management into operational processes became apparent. Risk 
management has been engrained within all the key areas of the organisation beyond the business operations and 
finance departments. The reporting of performance of processes was initiated during the December 2021 risk review 
and KRIs are being used to track the process risk profile evolution. 

A risk review exercise was carried out in December 2021 and will follow the prescribed quarterly pattern in 2022. Some 
of the risk treatment plans have already been integrated into strategic plans and the effectiveness of their 
implementation will be tracked for the duration of their tenure. Management and the risk champions were trained in 
March 2021 on how to integrate risk management into their day-to-day work. Audit is expected to review these 
operational risk management processes to assess the level of embeddedness in 2022.

To effectively deliver stakeholder value the Corporation will focus on building risk aware staff, strong strategic risk 
management systems, robust ERM system, strong risk culture, performance management linked risk metrics, 
advanced risk modelling tools geared for complex risks, automate the risk management processes, a strong fraud risk 
management framework and reinforced IT risk management systems across the whole organisation.
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A series of publicity initiatives were implemented to raise public awareness on the operations of the Deposit Protection 
Scheme and the Corporation’s important role in contributing to the stability of the country’s financial system. To 
achieve these objectives, initiatives outlined below were undertaken in line with the Corporate Strategic Plan and 
recommendations from the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI), specifically Core Principle Number 10 
on Public Awareness.

Public Relations

1. EVENTS MANAGEMENT

To increase brand visibility and public awareness of the Deposit Protection Scheme, DPC actively participated 
in such events as the Global Money Week, Zimbabwe International Trade Fair,  Zimbabwe Agricultural Show,   
Customer Service Week (4-8 October 2021), and Public Lecture & Online Events.

• Global Money Week
The Global Money Week was held from the 22nd to the 28th of March 2021 and the Corporation joined other 
stakeholders in the Financial Inclusion Forum in commemorating this event, with an objective to increase 
financial literacy of young adults. The activities undertaken were conducted mainly online due COVID-19 
restrictions on physical interactions. The Corporation developed an informative video on the importance of 
promoting a savings culture in children. The video was shared on our social media platforms and distributed to 
various schools via the popular WhatsApp messaging platform. Teachers would then share the video to 
learners during online lessons as part of increasing awareness on money saving tips.

• Zimbabwe International Trade Fair 
Despite several false starts due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the 61st edition of the Zimbabwe International Trade 
Fair (ZITF) was held in Bulawayo from 20-24 September 2021. The multi-sectoral exhibition provided excellent 
brand awareness opportunities for the Corporation to help raise awareness of the Scheme, presence of 
Bulawayo regional office and the current reimbursement exercise to depositors of closed banks. Engagements 
with strategic stakeholders were also made during the expo. 

• Zimbabwe Agricultural Show   
The Corporation also participated at Zimbabwe Agricultural Show, an annual event which promotes and 
facilitates the development of agriculture through its vibrant exhibitions, shows, competitions, training and 
information sharing.  The exhibition provided a platform for the Corporation to interact and network with other 
industry stakeholders and the public. The Show helped to promote financial literacy through distributing 
informational materials to other exhibitors and the public and obtain feedback from the public on DPC’s brand 
and service quality. Feedback received showed an increased appreciation by clients, media and other 
stakeholders on the role and importance of deposit insurance. The Corporation also exhibited at several 
regional trade shows as part of efforts to take awareness of the Scheme across the country.

• Customer Service Week (4-8 October 2021) 
Customer Service Week is an international celebration on the importance of customer service and the vital role 
it plays in successful business practice. The Corporation joined the rest of the world in recognising this 
important day as customer service is central to our operations. The Corporation utilised social media platforms 
and took the opportunity to remind and reinforce our customer charter, service obligations, service promise or 
pledge and channels through which clients can engage the Corporation namely website, social media, physical 
offices and Zimpost branches across the country.

Digital transformation through automating our customer touch points provided enhanced service delivery 
through utilising the helpdesk system, call centre, online chat and online claim forms. Our turnatound time to 
compensation within four working days has also been kept and appreciated by customers.
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• Public Lecture & Online Events  
A virtual public lecture was successfully conducted with students and academic staff from Bindura University of 
Science Education (BUSE) as part of raising awareness of the Scheme. Due to the inability to hold physical 
public lectures as per the norm due to the Covid-19 pandemic, online engagements proved to be effective as 
well in raising publicity of the Scheme.

The Corporation also attended virtual workshops hosted by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe on financial 
inclusion. The platforms offered great insights from presentations by the World Bank and other technical 
partners.

2. DIGITAL MARKETING  
The Corporation continued to adapt to evolving market innovations to stay relevant. The corporate website 
provided a great platform for disseminating information to the public on DPC operations and the Scheme.  It 
also provided a medium for the public to interact with the Corporation.  In light of COVID-19 challenges and 
need to observe social distancing, digital platforms were a key enabler for the DPC to continue providing 
seamless and uninterrupted client service delivery.

Social media platforms complemented DPC service delivery channels through automating routine enquiries and 
providing instant feedback to clients. Helpdesk system enabled the Corporation to track brand mentions in 
real-time and respond to client enquiries within expected service timelines thus increasing our response rate 
and customer satisfaction. Social media enabled the Corporation to conduct online advertising at no cost whilst 
gaining traction through shareability and engagement with the public online. More innovations are earmarked 
for the year 2022 such as enhancing the helpdesk system, introducing chatbots, and revamping the website to 
align with latest trends and technological demands.

Exploiting opportunities provided by social media in disseminating information enabled the Corporation to keep 
the public informed on the Scheme and its activities. Platforms such as Facebook and Twitter allowed the 
Corporation to respond to clients in real time, gauge public sentiment towards the brand, undertake media 
relations and elicit feedback from clients all at a very low cost as compared to advertising in traditional media 
such as newspapers.

Online advertising greatly assisted in driving awareness of the Scheme and dissemination of important 
information on the Corporation’s activities. Such online footprints sustained the brand in the marketplace 
despite the challenges presented by Covid-19 pandemic. The corporate website, Facebook, Twitter, WhatsApp, 
online directories, Google My Business, Email newsletter and advertising on high traffic websites assisted in 
raising informational awareness of the brand at a very low cost.

3. TRADITIONAL ADVERTISING
To complement digital marketing efforts, traditional media platforms such as radio, television and newspapers 
were also utilized. In line with recommendations from the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI) on 
public awareness, the Corporation ensured the key messages were conveyed in all advertising messages. To 
this end, the Corporation ensured the public was constantly informed on the Scheme, new developments, 
payments in progress, Corporation’s contact platforms and cover level updates. These messages were 
conveyed in different national languages to ensure diversity and inclusion. 

The introduction of deposit insurance for Foreign Currency Accounts (FCAs) was also covered in major 
regional, national, and international media outlets. Such coverage assisted in driving brand awareness and 
enhancing public confidence in the financial system.

Public Relations (continued)
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4. COLLABORATIONS

5. FINANCIAL LITERACY AND INCLUSION

Sponsored articles were published in the main newspapers and shared on social media platforms to increase 
reach, reinforce, and deepen knowledge of the brand and deposit insurance. 

The Corporation engaged universities and other stakeholders with a view to introduce deposit insurance 
module in university curricula. The Corporation collaborated with the Chartered Governance Institute and 
International Compliance Association in the launch and recruitment of students for the Governance, Risk and 
Compliance Diploma. The Diploma is targeted at stakeholders in the financial services industry and is one way 
of raising brand visibility and awareness of the Scheme.

Engagements with other related stakeholders such as Bindura University of Science Education (BUSE), Great 
Zimbabwe University (GZU), and the Institute of Bankers of Zimbabwe (IOBZ) were done with a view to extend 
awareness of deposit insurance in the academic space. Meetings held culminated in draft Memorandum of 
Understandings being signed.  

Several engagements were made with contributory institutions as part of stakeholder relations and enforcing 
compliance with publicity requirements as required by law for members to communicate their membership to 
the Scheme in all advertising messages. The Corporation also actively participated in workshops organised by 
other safety-net players such as the National Financial Inclusion Forum organised by the Reserve Bank of 
Zimbabwe. Stakeholder relations remained key and engagements were made with member institutions, 

As a key player of the National Financial Inclusion Forum, the Corporation played its role in attending meetings 
and driving the objectives of the Forum. Informational pamphlets were translated into Kalanga language in 
addition to current versions available namely Shona, English, Ndebele, Tonga, Chewa, braille, and sign language 
videos to cater for the deaf. Videos were made to cater for the deaf and braille were updated for the visually 
impaired to learn and understand the role and importance of deposit insurance. These initiatives contributed 

6. CLIENT SERVICE DELIVERY 
The delivery of quality service is an integral component of our operations and values. To provide fast, efficient, 
and accurate service entailed engaging with staff members and suppliers on customer charter expectations. 
Technology aided innovation were used in the provision of quality service to clients. No major complaints were 
raised against the Corporation’s service quality level in media platforms.

The Freedom of Information Act was enacted during the period under review with a view to increase 
informational transparency. The Corporation is in compliance with the provisions of the Act and always strives 
to ensure the public and media practitioners are provided with the latest information on the operations of the 

7. BRAND MONITORING 
In 2021 the brand continued to receive positive coverage in all media platforms with no incidences of negative 
publicity recorded. The introduction of deposit insurance for FCAs and compensation to depositors of 
deposit-taking microfinance institutions for losses incurred due to exchange rate movement yielded positive 
media coverage and assisted in raising brand visibility and the important role of deposit insurance. 

Brand monitoring is an ongoing exercise done by the Corporation through the use of latest media monitoring 
software that provide real-time feedback on brand coverage and sentiment reviews both in offline and online 
media.

Public Relations (continued)
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8. GOING FORWARD 

The Corporation remains optimistic that 
COVID-19 pandemic will be overcome and 
pave way for more physical engagements 
with the public in both urban and rural areas. 
An informed public on the benefits and 
limitations of the Scheme will help foster 
confidence and stability in the financial 
system and hence the success of the National 
Development Strategy 1 (NDS1).

Public Relations (continued)
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Human Capital Management

In 2021, the Corporation continued to demonstrate the ethos that Human resources are the most important resource 
as they are the drivers of the business. The Executive Management ensured that Human Resources played a significant 
role in developing positive business culture and improving productivity. The Corporation’s Board Human Resources 
continue to be the source of corporate value creation and the driving force behind sustainable growth. Human 
resources function ensured the workforce embraced the company's philosophy and business principles to ensure 
achievement of the Corporation’s goals. 

COVID- 19 PANDEMIC 
The year 2021 continued to be faced with unpreceded challenges in light of the complications presented by the 
COVID- 19 global pandemic. Government declared a lockdown in January and staff were largely working from home to 
mid-year. The work from home policy provided guidance and direction and this ensured a seamless transition to 
remote working. The use of digital space ensured that performance targets were met.  The Corporation has capitalised 
on the digital age by paying for Wi-Fi services for staff to create a new context that ensures that critical capabilities 
that drive the business are available. Meetings and training sessions were held virtually via online platforms which 
allowed staff members to participate electronically in real time. 

The Corporation’s thrust has remained on creating a COVID free workplace. The legislative and other measures put in 
place to curb the spread of the virus were being relentlessly adhered to. The Corporation will continue to observe all 
protocols in the interests of the health and safety of staff members and all stakeholders. We will ensure a safe 
workplace and continue offering support and resources to our employees and providing timely and accurate 
information about COVID-19 from reliable sources. All staff members were vaccinated and will be encouraged to get 
the booster jab in 2022. 

Performance Management  
The Corporation continues to make use of the Integrated Results Based Management (IRBM) performance 
management system to optimize performance. The system has greatly improved performance and quarterly 
performance appraisals were carried out despite staff working from home. Focus was mainly on achieving the 
deliverables as agreed in the individual timesheets at the beginning of the year. The system ensured budget 
integration and that increased focus on core items and made everyone accountable.

Employee Engagement and Retention    
The Corporation exhibits the ethos of creating a conducive working climate that increases level of staff engagement 
and thereby retain the key and critical skills. Various platforms have been put in place to provide free flow of 
information and feedback that is critical for decision making. This is intended to boost employee morale, increase 
engagement level, retain staff and in turn boost productivity.

Employee Nurturing & Development
The Corporation continues to strategically invest in employee development through professional development, 
relevant training, and conferences to ensure that the current and future needs are met. Accordingly, we are promoting 
human resources development programs that enable all our diverse employees to fully leverage their talents and 
achieve growth as professionals. The bulk of training in the year under review was carried out virtually in line with the 
COVID-19 protocols. 

Safety, Health, and Wellness   
The issue of staff safety, health and wellness has come to the fore in view of the COVID-19 pandemic. The state of being 
in good health is a major contributor to employee performance as employees perform as optimal when they are in 
good health. The Corporation ensured that everyone was safe and able to work from home and well-resourced to do 
so. The workforce is adapting well to the current COVID-19 environment as the new normal. 
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The ICT function operates with a complement of two permanent staff and regularly recruits contract workers when 
there is need. The ICT function is responsible for process automation, electronic data management, hardware, 
software and networking of computers in the organisation. The majority of the applications run on a Windows based 
systems with the smaller portion running on either Linux, Android or Apple systems.

The ICT function supports the organisation’s operations through the provision of robust and stable systems that foster 
data integrity, prompt deposit compensation and provision of timely information to stakeholders. 

The ICT successfully achieved the 2021 goal of attaining 90% process automation across the board. This was a 
marginal 5% increase from the previous fiscal year. The attainment of the goal was premised on expanding ICT 
utilisation on the current systems and the new automations that replaced manual processes. As such, the HR, 
Procurement and budgeting functions were activated in the current ERP application. In addition, an online document 
management system was setup using the SharePoint platform. Several upgrades to the current applications were 
completed to incorporate adjustments in scope of work and cyber security enhancements. The 2021 ICT projects 
included the following:

 •  Upgrades to Network Firewalls.
 •  Upgrades to Claims Processing System.
 •  Setting up of new network domain.
 •  Setting up Customer Support Centre.
 •  Setting of New Disaster Recovery Site 
 •  Implementation of an online document management system.
 •  Configurations of the Procurement, Budgeting and HR modules in the current ERP.
 
Service delivery
The reliance on computing technology continues to soar unabated due to the upward trends largely in online 
businesses, teleworking and social networking. The Corporation continues to prioritise ICT security by using licenced 
software, updating network perimeter security regularly and adopting reputable enterprise-wide antivirus solutions. In 
addition, replacement of outmoded computing equipment such as laptops, desktops, printers and networking 
appliances improve the working efficiency.

Devices such as laptops and tablets have experienced steady price increases due to inflation and increase in demand 
brought by the COVID pandemic. Worldwide spending on public cloud services grew by about 18% in 2021 as 
corporations keep moving closer to the cloud. The Corporation is currently running a negligible portion of the ICT 
systems on the cloud with plans to prudently expand the cloud utilisation gradually in future.

Information and Communication Technology
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are required in terms of the Deposit Protection Corporation Act [Chapter 24:29] to maintain adequate 
accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial 
information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the 
state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for 
the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are 
engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are based 
upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and 
estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established 
by the company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the 
directors to meet these responsibilities, the directors set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of 
error or loss in a cost-effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly 
defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level 
of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest 
ethical standards in ensuring the company’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is 
above reproach. The focus of risk management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring 
all known forms of risk across the company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours 
to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and 
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of 
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the 
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, 
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors are satisfied that the company has or had access to adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the company's financial statements. 
The financial statements have been examined by the company's external auditors and their report is presented on 
pages 50 to 52.

The financial statements set out on pages 54 to 74, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the directors on 25 July 2022 and were signed on their behalf by:

Approval of financial statements

Mr A. Moyo (Chairman)  Mr G. Chirozva (Acting Chief Executive Officer)

Mr A. Manzai (Director)
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the members of Deposit Protection Corporation Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Deposit Protection Corporation set out on pages 54 to 75 which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in reserves and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, 
the accompanying inflation adjusted financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the inflation adjusted 
financial position of Deposit Protection Corporation as at 31 December 2021, and its inflation adjusted financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
and the requirements of the Deposit Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24.29).

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Impact of prior year non-compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards IAS 21 – ‘Effects of changes in 
foreign exchange rates’

The basis for qualification is due to misstatements contained in the opening balance for retained earnings. The opening 
balances for 2019 financial period were reported as USD end of 2018 financial year and translated to ZWL on the rate 
of 1:1 at the beginning of 2019. Additionally, transactions between 1 January 2019 and 21 February 2019 were recorded 
at the rate of 1:1 in compliance with SI 33/19. Although the evidence in the market suggested that there was no longer 
parity between the USD and “local currency” up to 21 February 2019, the directors maintained an exchange rate of 1:1 
in compliance with SI 33/19. This constituted a departure from the requirements of IAS 21. As a result, the 
misstatements on the prior years’ income statement are still carried forward in the current retained earnings balance.

Emphasis of Matter 
The Covid-19 Pandemic
We draw attention to Note 15 of the inflation adjusted financial statements which brings attention to users of financial 
statements, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. There are uncertainties in relation to possible effects and impacts 
of the COVID 19 pandemic to the entity’s operations in future and its ability to continue as a going concern. Our audit 
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
inflation adjusted financial statements of the current year. Key audit matters are selected from the matters 
communicated with those charged with governance but are not intended to represent all matters that were discussed 
with them. In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our report, we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole. Our opinion on the inflation adjusted financial statements is not 
modified with respect to any of the key audit matters described below, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters.
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Hyperinflation Accounting (High risk area and significant judgement)

Following the Public Accountants and Auditors 
Board (PAAB) designation of Zimbabwe as 
hyperinflationary economy, management also 
evaluated and determined the economy of 
Zimbabwe to be hyperinflationary. Deposit 
Protection Corporation applied the requirements 
of IAS 29 –Financial reporting in Hyperinflationary 
Economies.

Hyperinflationary accounting was determined to 
be a matter of most significance to the audit due 
to high risk and the significance of the balances 
and transactions, and the complexity and 
subjectivity relating to the application of the 
Standard.

IAS 29 requires significant judgments to be made 
by management considering the guidelines 
provided in IAS 29 are limited. Deposit Protection 
Corporation accounting policy on hyperinflation 
accounting is disclosed on Note 1.1.

We obtained an understanding of the Deposit Protection 
Corporation process for identifying hyperinflationary 
economies and evaluated the policy in relation to hyperinflation 
accounting. Our audit procedures included, among others:

We assessed and tested the indicators of hyperinflation on 
the Zimbabwean economy by corroborating these with 
industry report and our own understanding of the 
economy;
We recomputed and tested the hyperinflation workings 
prepared by management by evaluating the rationale for 
the economic indicators included (such as the inflation rate, 
cumulative inflation rate, consumer price indices from 
various sources).
We tested the source data used by agreeing it to 
supporting schedules.
We assessed the reasonability of the assumptions used by 
comparing the set of externally available industry, financial 
and economic data; and;
We tested restatement of statement financial position and 
income statement items for compliance to the 
requirements of IAS 29.
We assessed whether disclosures in the financial 
statements appropriately reflected the effects of the 
adoption of IAS 29.

Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
the organisation’s basis of accounting, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that is free from material misstatement whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organisation’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the organisation or cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

•

•

•

•

•

•

We found that the inflation adjusted financial statements have 
been properly restated in terms of IAS 29.

Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (IESBA Code), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in Zimbabwe, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.
Conclude on the appropriateness of director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on Deposit Protection Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s statements to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosure is inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s statements. However future events and 
conditions may cause Deposit Protection Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

•

•

•

•

•

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Partner: Fungai Nyagwaya PAAB Practising Number: 0477
Baker Tilly Chartered Accountants (Zimbabwe)
Celestial Office Park, Unit D & H Block 1, Borrowdale Road, Borrowdale Harare

Date: 25 July 2022

Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
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Financial Statements

DPC Annual Report 202153



*"

!

!

!"#$%&'()*$'"+'&$,(-$*#$*.'&$,(

!"#$#%"$&'()$)*+*#),'-./')0*'1*$/'*#2*2'34'5*%*+6*/'7874'
'

I'.'"6",'($5(H&,.,+&.3()$%&'&$,(.%(.'(`K(!"+"6;"*(JUJK( (
! ! !"#$%&'(")

*+,-.&/+)
!"#$%&'(")
*+,-.&/+)

0'.&(1'2%$)
3(.&)

0'.&(1'2%$)
3(.&)

4(&/5.6) 7879)
:;<)

7878)
:;<)

7879)
:;<)

7878)
:;<)

*==>?=)
4("@2-11/"&)%../&.)
!"#$%"&'()*%+,-.%/)012)%34,$5%1&)

!
!

6)

!
!

667(89:(;8<)

!
!
=7;(><8(<<=)

!
!
)))))))))6=?(<?;(>?6)

!
!
=?6(<?<(7<:)

@1*%/&5%1&)$"#$%"&') ;) )))))=?<(6=?(???))=89(>;=(:<<) )))))))=?<(6=?(???) )76(<67(<77)
! ! ))))));;8(:7:(;8<);86(89:(6?:) ))))));=<(>=;(>?6))=7<(?;<(<<<)
3-11/"&)%../&.)
A,101-,0.)0//%&/)

!
;)

!
6<=(==8(9=:)

!
77(9;9(7>:)

!
6<=(==8(9=:)

!
:6(==6(6:9)

B"02%)012)#&+%")"%-%,*0C.%/) 8) 6>>(8?<(:9;) >>(?67(<7<) 6>>(8?<(:9;) 8>(76=(77<)
D0/+)012)-0/+)%34,*0.%1&/) <) )) )::(=6=(;;?) ;(?99(967) )) )::(=6=(;;?) =(76=(:;:)
B#&0.)-4""%1&)0//%&/) <78(:8=(967) =>7(7<>(8??)! <78(:8=(967) ===(7<<(977)

?(&%$)%../&.) A7ABCCDB9EF) G77BFFCBH8H)! A98BCGGBGC9) C8HBAA9BFGF)

!
I>=>IJ>=)*4K)<!*L!<!?!>=)
I/./1M/.)
E--454.0&%2)F412)

!
!
!

999(=8:(9;<)

!
!
!
<?6(7?9(>7;)

! !
!
!

:87(7??(76=)

!
!
!
=;<(<<>(787)

G#1H2,/&",C4&0C.%)"%/%"*%) ))I>(6;6(?8;J) >(;:9(;97)! 6=6(?;=(66>) =:;(9:8(8><)

?(&%$)/N-'&O) ))))))99?(7=8(>76))<=?(6>>(=96)! ))))))9:=(7;6(=89))677(866(868)

!
3-11/"&)$'%P'$'&'/.)
B"02%)012)#&+%")$0'0C.%/)

!
!

:)

!
!

8<(?><(::6)

!
!

:(>=6(>?<)

!
!

8<(?><(::6)

!
!

8(=>:(=;9)
!"#*,/,#1)F#")$"#&%-&,#1)$0'5%1&/) >) )) ;(;8>(>6=) <(8<;(>=7) ! )) );(;8>(>6=) );(;76(976)
B#&0.)-4""%1&).,0C,.,&,%/) ! )) 89(86;(;9;) =6(=::(868) ! )) )89(86;(;9;) )>(<:7(?;?)

?(&%$)1/./1M/.)%"+)$'%P'$'&'/.) ! A7ABCCDB9EF)G77BFFCBH8H) ! A98BCGGBGC9)C8HBAA9BFGF)

!
!
!

!
3Q'/#)>R/2-&'M/)S##'2/1)

!
TTUUUUUUUUVTTUUUUUUVTUUUUUUUU)

0%1%1/B):'WP%PX/)

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2021

Acting Chief Executive Officer,

21 July 2022
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Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income
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Statement of Changes in Reserves
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Statement of Cashflows
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General Information
The Deposit Protection Corporation (the ‘Corporation’) was established by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe on 
behalf of the Government of Zimbabwe to lessen the impact on the public when banks, building societies and 
other financial institutions become insolvent or collapse.

The Corporation is incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe.

The financial statements are expressed in Zimbabwe dollars (ZWL)

Statement of compliance
The Corporation’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards, (IFRS) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, (IFRIC) 
interpretations. The financial statements are based on statutory records that are maintained under the 
historical cost convention.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are based on statutory records that are maintained under the historical cost 
convention. Appropriate adjustments and reclassifications including restatement of changes in the general 
purchasing power of the Zimbabwean dollar for the purpose of fair presentation in compliance with 
International Accounting Standard 29, have been made in these financial statements to the historical cost 
financial information. Accordingly, the inflation adjusted financial statements represent the primary financial 
statements of the company. The historical cost financial statements have been provided by way of 
supplementary information.

International Accounting Standard 29 "Financial reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies" requires that the 
financial statements that are prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy be stated in terms of 
the measuring unit current at the balance sheet date, and that corresponding figures for previous periods be 
restated in the same terms.

One characteristic that necessitates the application of IAS 29, is that cumulative inflation over a three-year 
period should be approaching or exceeding 100%. The fact has been fulfilled in the situation of Zimbabwe. 
The conversion factors used to restate these financial statements are based on the consumer price index 
published by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe. The indices and conversion factors used to restate the 
accompanying financial statements at 31 December 2021 are given below:

 
 Dates   Indices  Conversion factor
 31 December 2021 3977.5               1
 31 December 2020 2474.5              1.6074
 31 December 2019 551.6              7.2108

The main procedures applied for the above-mentioned restatements are as follows:
Financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy are restated in terms of the 
measuring unit current at the balance sheet date, and corresponding figures for the period are restated in the 
same terms.
Monetary assets and liabilities that are carried at amounts current at the balance sheet date are not restated 
because they are already expressed in terms of the monetary unit current at the balance sheet date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are not carried at amounts current at balance sheet date and 
components of shareholders' equity are restated by applying the relevant quarterly conversion factors.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to 
Zimbabwe dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies, which are stated at historical cost, are translated into Zimbabwean dollars 
at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Comparative financial statements are restated using general inflation indices in terms of the measuring unit, 
current at the latest balance sheet date. All items in the income statement are restated by applying the 
relevant month, yearly average or year-end conversion factor.

The effect of inflation on the net monetary position of the company is included in the income statement as a 
monetary gain/(loss) adjustment.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
In preparing the annual financial statements in terms of IFRS, management is required to make certain 
estimates and assumptions that may materially affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported 
period and the related disclosures. The actual results often vary from these estimates due to the inherent 
uncertainty involved in making estimates and assumptions concerning future events. These estimates and 
judgments are based on historical experience, current and expected future economic conditions and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

As the estimates are reviewed on a regular basis, any changes to these accounting estimates are recognized 
in the period in which the estimate is revised, if it impacts on only the current period. If the revision of the 
estimate impacts on both the current and future periods, then the change in estimate is recognized in the 
current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgments
The following accounting policies have been identified as being particularly complex or involving subjective 
judgments or assessments:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Corporation's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its 
property and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product life cycle of these assets. It could 
change significantly as a result of technological innovations in response to severe industry cycles. 
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives 
or will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. 
The current year estimated useful lives were as follows:

 Buildings    20 - 40 years
 Furniture and fittings   10 years
 Computers and office equipment 4 years
 Vehicles    3 - 5 years

Provision for protection payments
The provision for protection payments represents the present value of the Directors best estimate of the 
future outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Corporation’s obligations as set out in the 
Deposit Protection Corporation Act. Management annually assesses the performance of the banks using the 
CAMELS rating system. The estimate of the exposure is based on the number of depositors of distressed 
institutions at the end of the year. Distressed banks on the Central banks watch list with a CAMELS rating of 
4 and above were provided for except for a government bank. The bank regularly gets government support 
to fund agriculture.

Recognition of subrogation fees
In terms of the DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] Section 46, the Corporation shall be subrogated up to the amount 
paid to depositors of failed banks. The timing of the refund is dependent on the availability of cash from 
disposals of failed bank(s) assets and recoveries from the failed bank(s) debtors. The process can be 
protracted. In view of this timing uncertainty, subrogated income is not accrued but recognized on date of 
receipt. During the year subrogation income was recognized on receipt of funds.

1.

   1.1

   1.2

Accounting Policies
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General Information
The Deposit Protection Corporation (the ‘Corporation’) was established by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe on 
behalf of the Government of Zimbabwe to lessen the impact on the public when banks, building societies and 
other financial institutions become insolvent or collapse.

The Corporation is incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe.

The financial statements are expressed in Zimbabwe dollars (ZWL)

Statement of compliance
The Corporation’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards, (IFRS) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, (IFRIC) 
interpretations. The financial statements are based on statutory records that are maintained under the 
historical cost convention.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are based on statutory records that are maintained under the historical cost 
convention. Appropriate adjustments and reclassifications including restatement of changes in the general 
purchasing power of the Zimbabwean dollar for the purpose of fair presentation in compliance with 
International Accounting Standard 29, have been made in these financial statements to the historical cost 
financial information. Accordingly, the inflation adjusted financial statements represent the primary financial 
statements of the company. The historical cost financial statements have been provided by way of 
supplementary information.

International Accounting Standard 29 "Financial reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies" requires that the 
financial statements that are prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy be stated in terms of 
the measuring unit current at the balance sheet date, and that corresponding figures for previous periods be 
restated in the same terms.

One characteristic that necessitates the application of IAS 29, is that cumulative inflation over a three-year 
period should be approaching or exceeding 100%. The fact has been fulfilled in the situation of Zimbabwe. 
The conversion factors used to restate these financial statements are based on the consumer price index 
published by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe. The indices and conversion factors used to restate the 
accompanying financial statements at 31 December 2021 are given below:

 
 Dates   Indices  Conversion factor
 31 December 2021 3977.5               1
 31 December 2020 2474.5              1.6074
 31 December 2019 551.6              7.2108

The main procedures applied for the above-mentioned restatements are as follows:
Financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy are restated in terms of the 
measuring unit current at the balance sheet date, and corresponding figures for the period are restated in the 
same terms.
Monetary assets and liabilities that are carried at amounts current at the balance sheet date are not restated 
because they are already expressed in terms of the monetary unit current at the balance sheet date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are not carried at amounts current at balance sheet date and 
components of shareholders' equity are restated by applying the relevant quarterly conversion factors.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to 
Zimbabwe dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies, which are stated at historical cost, are translated into Zimbabwean dollars 
at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Comparative financial statements are restated using general inflation indices in terms of the measuring unit, 
current at the latest balance sheet date. All items in the income statement are restated by applying the 
relevant month, yearly average or year-end conversion factor.

The effect of inflation on the net monetary position of the company is included in the income statement as a 
monetary gain/(loss) adjustment.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
In preparing the annual financial statements in terms of IFRS, management is required to make certain 
estimates and assumptions that may materially affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported 
period and the related disclosures. The actual results often vary from these estimates due to the inherent 
uncertainty involved in making estimates and assumptions concerning future events. These estimates and 
judgments are based on historical experience, current and expected future economic conditions and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

As the estimates are reviewed on a regular basis, any changes to these accounting estimates are recognized 
in the period in which the estimate is revised, if it impacts on only the current period. If the revision of the 
estimate impacts on both the current and future periods, then the change in estimate is recognized in the 
current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgments
The following accounting policies have been identified as being particularly complex or involving subjective 
judgments or assessments:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Corporation's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its 
property and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product life cycle of these assets. It could 
change significantly as a result of technological innovations in response to severe industry cycles. 
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives 
or will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. 
The current year estimated useful lives were as follows:

 Buildings    20 - 40 years
 Furniture and fittings   10 years
 Computers and office equipment 4 years
 Vehicles    3 - 5 years

Provision for protection payments
The provision for protection payments represents the present value of the Directors best estimate of the 
future outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Corporation’s obligations as set out in the 
Deposit Protection Corporation Act. Management annually assesses the performance of the banks using the 
CAMELS rating system. The estimate of the exposure is based on the number of depositors of distressed 
institutions at the end of the year. Distressed banks on the Central banks watch list with a CAMELS rating of 
4 and above were provided for except for a government bank. The bank regularly gets government support 
to fund agriculture.

Recognition of subrogation fees
In terms of the DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] Section 46, the Corporation shall be subrogated up to the amount 
paid to depositors of failed banks. The timing of the refund is dependent on the availability of cash from 
disposals of failed bank(s) assets and recoveries from the failed bank(s) debtors. The process can be 
protracted. In view of this timing uncertainty, subrogated income is not accrued but recognized on date of 
receipt. During the year subrogation income was recognized on receipt of funds.

   1.3
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Accounting Policies (continued)
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Recognition of premium from troubled banks
The DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] Section 28 provides that all contributory institutions including those under 
judicial management and curatorship are liable to contribute to the DPC Fund. Management assesses on a 
quarterly basis the probability of recoverability of premiums from troubled banks and banks under judicial 
management and curatorship.

Property, Vehicles & Equipment
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in profit or loss.

Impairment
An impairment review of property, vehicles and equipment is carried out when there is an indication that these 
may be impaired by comparing the carrying amount thereof to its recoverable amount. The Corporation’s 
operations as a whole constitute the smallest cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the 
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in the 
ordinary course of the Corporation's activities.

The Corporation recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the 
Corporation's activities as described below.

Premium income
Premium income is recognised in the accounting period in which it accrues. Premiums are received in arrears.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a 
receivable is impaired, the Corporation reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the 
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument and continues 
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognized using the original 
effective interest rate.

Subrogation income
Subrogation income is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the Corporation has an irrevocable right to receive funds 
during the period with considerable certainty.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary 
course of business. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one 
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is 
material).

Onerous contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous 
contract is considered to exist where the Corporation has a contract under which unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the 
contract.

Leases
Assets held under a finance lease arrangement are capitalised as property, plant and equipment at the fair 
value of the leased asset at inception of the lease, or if lower, at the present value of minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position.

Finance lease payments are apportioned between finance costs and the reduction in the lease obligation, 
using the effective interest method.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except 
where another systematic basis is more representative of the pattern in which economic benefits from leased 
assets are consumed.

Taxation
The Corporation is domiciled in Zimbabwe. Under the current laws of Zimbabwe there is no income, estate, 
corporation, capital gains or other taxes payable by the Corporation. This is with exception of value added tax 
("VAT") and Corporation's employees Pay As You Earn ("PAYE") which are due and payable when applicable.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument in another entity. The Corporation’s financial instruments consist primarily of the following 
financial assets: non-current receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables; other 
current financial assets; and the following financial liabilities: borrowings, trade and other payables, and 
certain derivative instruments.

Fair value
Where financial instruments are recognised at fair value, the instruments are measured at the amount for 
which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction. Fair values have been determined as follows:
• Where market prices are available, these have been used.
• Where there are no market prices available, fair values have been determined using valuation   
 techniques incorporating observable market inputs or discounting expected cash flows at market    
 rates.
• The fair value of the trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other   
 payables approximates their carrying amount due to the short maturity period of these instruments.

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial 
liability and of allocating interest income or expense over the period of the instrument.
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Recognition of premium from troubled banks
The DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] Section 28 provides that all contributory institutions including those under 
judicial management and curatorship are liable to contribute to the DPC Fund. Management assesses on a 
quarterly basis the probability of recoverability of premiums from troubled banks and banks under judicial 
management and curatorship.

Property, Vehicles & Equipment
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in profit or loss.

Impairment
An impairment review of property, vehicles and equipment is carried out when there is an indication that these 
may be impaired by comparing the carrying amount thereof to its recoverable amount. The Corporation’s 
operations as a whole constitute the smallest cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the 
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in the 
ordinary course of the Corporation's activities.

The Corporation recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the 
Corporation's activities as described below.

Premium income
Premium income is recognised in the accounting period in which it accrues. Premiums are received in arrears.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a 
receivable is impaired, the Corporation reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the 
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument and continues 
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognized using the original 
effective interest rate.

Subrogation income
Subrogation income is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the Corporation has an irrevocable right to receive funds 
during the period with considerable certainty.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary 
course of business. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one 
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is 
material).

Onerous contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous 
contract is considered to exist where the Corporation has a contract under which unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the 
contract.

Leases
Assets held under a finance lease arrangement are capitalised as property, plant and equipment at the fair 
value of the leased asset at inception of the lease, or if lower, at the present value of minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position.

Finance lease payments are apportioned between finance costs and the reduction in the lease obligation, 
using the effective interest method.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except 
where another systematic basis is more representative of the pattern in which economic benefits from leased 
assets are consumed.

Taxation
The Corporation is domiciled in Zimbabwe. Under the current laws of Zimbabwe there is no income, estate, 
corporation, capital gains or other taxes payable by the Corporation. This is with exception of value added tax 
("VAT") and Corporation's employees Pay As You Earn ("PAYE") which are due and payable when applicable.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument in another entity. The Corporation’s financial instruments consist primarily of the following 
financial assets: non-current receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables; other 
current financial assets; and the following financial liabilities: borrowings, trade and other payables, and 
certain derivative instruments.

Fair value
Where financial instruments are recognised at fair value, the instruments are measured at the amount for 
which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction. Fair values have been determined as follows:
• Where market prices are available, these have been used.
• Where there are no market prices available, fair values have been determined using valuation   
 techniques incorporating observable market inputs or discounting expected cash flows at market    
 rates.
• The fair value of the trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other   
 payables approximates their carrying amount due to the short maturity period of these instruments.

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial 
liability and of allocating interest income or expense over the period of the instrument.
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Recognition of premium from troubled banks
The DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] Section 28 provides that all contributory institutions including those under 
judicial management and curatorship are liable to contribute to the DPC Fund. Management assesses on a 
quarterly basis the probability of recoverability of premiums from troubled banks and banks under judicial 
management and curatorship.

Property, Vehicles & Equipment
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in profit or loss.

Impairment
An impairment review of property, vehicles and equipment is carried out when there is an indication that these 
may be impaired by comparing the carrying amount thereof to its recoverable amount. The Corporation’s 
operations as a whole constitute the smallest cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the 
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in the 
ordinary course of the Corporation's activities.

The Corporation recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the 
Corporation's activities as described below.

Premium income
Premium income is recognised in the accounting period in which it accrues. Premiums are received in arrears.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a 
receivable is impaired, the Corporation reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the 
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument and continues 
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognized using the original 
effective interest rate.

Subrogation income
Subrogation income is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the Corporation has an irrevocable right to receive funds 
during the period with considerable certainty.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary 
course of business. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one 
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is 
material).

Onerous contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous 
contract is considered to exist where the Corporation has a contract under which unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the 
contract.

Leases
Assets held under a finance lease arrangement are capitalised as property, plant and equipment at the fair 
value of the leased asset at inception of the lease, or if lower, at the present value of minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position.

Finance lease payments are apportioned between finance costs and the reduction in the lease obligation, 
using the effective interest method.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except 
where another systematic basis is more representative of the pattern in which economic benefits from leased 
assets are consumed.

Taxation
The Corporation is domiciled in Zimbabwe. Under the current laws of Zimbabwe there is no income, estate, 
corporation, capital gains or other taxes payable by the Corporation. This is with exception of value added tax 
("VAT") and Corporation's employees Pay As You Earn ("PAYE") which are due and payable when applicable.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument in another entity. The Corporation’s financial instruments consist primarily of the following 
financial assets: non-current receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables; other 
current financial assets; and the following financial liabilities: borrowings, trade and other payables, and 
certain derivative instruments.

Fair value
Where financial instruments are recognised at fair value, the instruments are measured at the amount for 
which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction. Fair values have been determined as follows:
• Where market prices are available, these have been used.
• Where there are no market prices available, fair values have been determined using valuation   
 techniques incorporating observable market inputs or discounting expected cash flows at market    
 rates.
• The fair value of the trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other   
 payables approximates their carrying amount due to the short maturity period of these instruments.

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial 
liability and of allocating interest income or expense over the period of the instrument.

Effectively, this method determines the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, if appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

Financial assets

The Corporation classifies financial assets into the following categories:
• At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
• Loans and receivables.
• Held-to-maturity (HTM).
• Available-for-sale (AFS).

The classification of the financial assets is dependent on the purpose and characteristics of the financial 
assets and is determined at the date of initial recognition. Management reassesses the classification of 
financial assets on a bi-annual basis.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the asset is either held-for-trading or is a derivative that does 
not satisfy the criteria for hedge accounting or is designated at FVTPL.

A financial asset is designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if this designation provides more useful 
information because:

• it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (i.e., an accounting  
 mismatch); or

• the financial asset is part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, that is managed, and   
 its performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk/investment   
 management strategy, and information regarding this grouping is reported internally to key management  
 on this basis.

In addition, if a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire contract can be designated 
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are recognized at fair value. Any subsequent gains or losses are recognized in profit 
or loss.

Financial assets classified as held-for-trading comprise the foreign forward exchange contracts which are not 
designated as hedges in terms of IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Classification between debt and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements and 
the definitions of a financial liability and equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument represents a contract that evidences a residual interest in the net assets of the 
Corporation after deducting its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Corporation are recorded at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the liability is either incurred for trading or is a derivative 
that does not satisfy the criteria for hedge accounting or is designated at FVTPL. A financial liability is 
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if this designation provides more useful information because:

• it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (i.e., an accounting  
 mismatch); or
• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, that is managed,  
 and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk/investment  
 management strategy, and information regarding this grouping is reported internally to key management  
 on this basis.

In addition, if a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire contract can be designated 
at FVTPL.

Borrowings, obligations under finance leases and trade and other payables have been classified as other 
financial liabilities.

Loan commitments
Loan commitments provided at below market interest rates are measured at initial recognition at their fair 
values and if not designated at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

• the amount of the obligation in terms of the contract as determined in accordance with IAS 37 (Provisions,  
 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets); or
• the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with IAS 18 –  
 Revenue.

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Remuneration paid to employees in respect of services rendered during a reporting period is recognized as 
an expense in that reporting period. Accruals are made for accumulated leave and are measured at the 
amount that the Corporation expects to pay when the leave is used.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are charged against income when the Corporation is demonstrably committed to 
terminating the employment of an employee before their normal retirement date.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans
Retirement, provident and pension fund contributions to defined contribution plans in respect of services 
rendered during a reporting period are recognised as an expense in that period.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the liability is either incurred for trading or is a derivative 
that does not satisfy the criteria for hedge accounting or is designated at FVTPL. A financial liability is 
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if this designation provides more useful information because:

• it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (i.e., an accounting  
 mismatch); or
• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, that is managed,  
 and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk/investment  
 management strategy, and information regarding this grouping is reported internally to key management  
 on this basis.

In addition, if a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire contract can be designated 
at FVTPL.

Borrowings, obligations under finance leases and trade and other payables have been classified as other 
financial liabilities.

Loan commitments
Loan commitments provided at below market interest rates are measured at initial recognition at their fair 
values and if not designated at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

• the amount of the obligation in terms of the contract as determined in accordance with IAS 37 (Provisions,  
 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets); or
• the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with IAS 18 –  
 Revenue.

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Remuneration paid to employees in respect of services rendered during a reporting period is recognized as 
an expense in that reporting period. Accruals are made for accumulated leave and are measured at the 
amount that the Corporation expects to pay when the leave is used.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are charged against income when the Corporation is demonstrably committed to 
terminating the employment of an employee before their normal retirement date.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans
Retirement, provident and pension fund contributions to defined contribution plans in respect of services 
rendered during a reporting period are recognised as an expense in that period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

!"#$%&'()*$'"+'&$,(-$*#$*.'&$,(

!"#$#%"$&'()$)*+*#),'-./')0*'1*$/'*#2*2'34'5*%*+6*/'7874'

:$'"%('$('C"(H&,.,+&.3(I'.'"6",'%( (

$)"

!

!

)
9GP7)3%&/Q(1'/.)(#)#'"%"2'%$)'".&1-N/"&.)
!
!"#$#%"$&'$(()*('

!

K;8E";2L"M;2N"M;<;23.8" ((5#$#5%%!" %5!**5*$+" ((5#$#5%%!" #5+$#5(%("
O-488"/42.B"/;-N.9"P12L8"3;--0.L";9";/4-90Q.L"3489" $$5()&5+*'" %#5(&%5$**" $$5()&5+*'" #+5(*(5!(%"
HR109B":12L8" #&5(+%5)&(" %!5+)&5()(" #&5(+%5)&(" $%5#'(5#!$"
F-.;81-B"M0<<8";2L"M42L8" $#%5)&(5!*'" %)5$$#5!#$" $#%5)&(5!*'" #+5$)!5#!%"
S4;28";2L"-.3.07;M<.8" """""$))5&!'5(*%" ))5!$+5'+'" ""$))5&!'5(*%" &)5+$#5++'"
! )))))GLIHJI9HF7F) 9KLHLGKHELL) ))GLIHJI9HF7L)999HLGGHFLF)
!
!"#$#%"$&'&"$+"&"*")('
F-;L.";2L"49E.-"A;B;M<.8"

!
!

&'5!)'5(($"

!
!

(5)#$5)!'"

!
!

&'5!)'5(($"

!
!
&5#)(5#%*"

DPC Annual Report 202171



!"#$%&'()*$'"+'&$,(-$*#$*.'&$,(

!"#$#%"$&'()$)*+*#),'-./')0*'1*$/'*#2*2'34'5*%*+6*/'7874'

:$'"%('$('C"(H&,.,+&.3(I'.'"6",'%( (

$*"

!

!

! !

!

Ke^`!4,'"*"%'(*.'"(*&%?(

M0*'G./;./$)".#'",'*`;.,*2').'"#)*/*,)'/$)*'/",N'6*%$?,*')0*'G./;./$)".#'6.//.J,'-?#2,'$)'6.)0'-"`*2'
$#2'-&.$)"#I'"#)*/*,)'/$)*,P'

M0*'G./;./$)".#9,'*`;.,?/*,').'"#)*/*,)'/$)*,'.#'-"#$#%"$&'$,,*),'$#2'-"#$#%"$&'&"$6"&")"*,'$/*'2*)$"&*2'
"#')0*'&"\?"2")1'/",N'+$#$I*+*#)',*%)".#'.-')0",'#.)*P'

'
Ke^V!a&c7&9&'8(*&%?(

E"\?"2")1'/",N'",')0*'/",N')0$)')0*'G./;./$)".#'J"&&'6*'?#$6&*').'+**)'$'-"#$#%"$&'%.++")+*#)'"#'$#1'
&.%$)".#'./'%?//*#%1P'M0",'/",N'",'+"#"+"W*2')0/.?I0')0*'0.&2"#I'.-'%$,0'6$&$#%*,'$#2'-"#$#%"$&'$,,*),P'
>#'$22")".#O'2*)$"&*2'%$,0'-&.J'-./*%$,),'$/*'/*I?&$/&1';/*;$/*2'$#2'/*="*J*2'61'+$#$I*+*#)P'M0*'
%$,0'#**2,'.-')0*'G./;./$)".#'$/*'+$#$I*2'$%%./2"#I').'"),'/*\?"/*+*#),P'

'
M0*' -.&&.J"#I' )$6&*' 2*)$"&,' )0*' G./;./$)".#c,' /*+$"#"#I' %.#)/$%)?$&' +$)?/")1' -./' "),' -"#$#%"$&'
&"$6"&")"*,P'M0*')$6&*'0$,'6**#'%.+;"&*2'6$,*2'.#')0*'?#2",%.?#)*2'%$,0'-&.J,'.-'-"#$#%"$&'&"$6"&")"*,'
6$,*2'.#')0*'*$/&"*,)'2$)*'.#'J0"%0')0*'G./;./$)".#'%$#'6*'/*\?"/*2').'/*;$1')0*'&"$6"&")1P'M0*'%$,0'
-&.J,'"#%&?2*'6.)0')0*';/"#%";$&'$#2'"#)*/*,)';$1+*#),P'

!

"#$%&'#(!)*#+)%#!

!

,--#.'$*#! /#00!'&)1!23! /#00!'&)1!23!

41'#+#0'!5)'#! 671'&0! 2!'7!8!9#)+0! :!8!9#)+0! ;7')<! 671'&0! 2!'7!8!9#)+0!:!8!9#)+0! ;7')<!

!"#$%&"'()*'%#$* "+,)($"%+*(-./#$0-*

+12*3456789674*:6282;68<*62=95>?429=*
!
@A@B*
;+)(#!)1(!7'&#+!=)9)><#0!

?"/!
)
!
@8ABC8ADDE!

?"/!
)
!

F!

?"/!
)
!

F!

?"/!
)
!
@8ABC8ADDE!

?"/!
)
!
@8ABC8ADDE!

?"/!
)
!

F!

?"/!
)
!

F!

?"/!
)
!
@8ABC8ADDE!

! CDEAFDEGGH* I* I* CDEAFDEGGH* CDEAFDEGGH* I* I* I*
#
@A@A*

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

;+)(#!)1(!7'&#+!=)9)><#0! 1G)! @A2CDA2EH! F! F! @A2CDA2EH! DAC23ACB8! F! F! DAC23ACB8!

! ! CEBFGEBHJ* ! CEBFGEBHJ* GEFB@EFAD* GEFB@EFAD*

!
Ke^e! -*"9&'(*&%?(

!
C.)*#)"$&'%.#%*#)/$)".#,'.-'%/*2")'/",N'%.#,",)';/"+$/"&1'.-',0./)A)*/+'%$,0'"#=*,)+*#),'$#2'$%%.?#),'
/*%*"=$6&*P'G/*2")'/",N'$/",*,'-/.+')0*'/",N')0$)'$'%.?#)*/';$/)1'+$1'2*-$?&)'./'#.)'+**)'"),'.6&"I$)".#,'
)"+*.?,&1P' M0*' G./;./$)".#' +"#"+"W*,' %/*2")' /",N' 61' *#,?/"#I' )0$)' %.?#)*/;$/)"*,' $/*' 6$#N"#I'
"#,)")?)".#,'.-')0*'0"I0*,)'\?$&")1O')0$)'$;;/.;/"$)*'%/*2")'&"+"),'$/*'"#';&$%*'-./'*$%0'%.?#)*/';$/)1'
$#2' )0$)' ,0./)' )*/+'%$,0' "#=*,)+*#),'$/*' ,;/*$2'$+.#I,)'$'#?+6*/'.-'2"--*/*#)' %.?#)*/;$/)"*,P'
[$#N"#I'%.?#)*/;$/)1'&"+"),'$/*'/*="*J*2'$##?$&&1'61')0*'[.$/2P'

'
M0*' %$//1"#I' $+.?#)' .-' )0*' -"#$#%"$&' $,,*),' /*;/*,*#),' )0*' G./;./$)".#c,'+$`"+?+' *`;.,?/*' ).'
%/*2")'/",N'J")0.?)')$N"#I'"#).'%.#,"2*/$)".#'$#1'%.&&$)*/$&';/.="2*2^'

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

DPC Annual Report 202172



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
!"#$%&'()*$'"+'&$,(-$*#$*.'&$,(

!"#$#%"$&'()$)*+*#),'-./')0*'1*$/'*#2*2'34'5*%*+6*/'7874'

:$'"%('$('C"(H&,.,+&.3(I'.'"6",'%( (

$+"

!

!

!

! 9$/*+,0#$!
&.W(1,-.!

9$/*+,0#$!
&.W(1,-.!

P01,#20'+*!
R#1,!

P01,#20'+*!
R#1,!

DEDB! DEDE! DEDB! DEDE!
678! 678! 678! 678!

!
9GPG)31/+'&)1'.R)52("&'"-/+6)

! ! ! !

S%@'N-N)21/+'&)1'.R) ! ! ! !

:02;230;<";88.98";2L"49E.-"3-.L09".GA481-.8" ! ! ! !

D9E.-"P02;230;<";88.98" $'#5##&5*#("++5*%*5+)(" $'#5##&5*#(" ($5##$5$(*"
F-;L.";2L"49E.-"-.3.07;M<.8" $))5&!'5(*%"))5!$+5'+'" $))5&!'5(*%" &)5+$#5++'"
K;8E";2L"3;8E"M;<;23." ((5#$#5%%!" %5!**5*$+" ((5#$#5%%!" #5+$#5(%("

))GLIHJI9HF7L)9KLHLGKHI88)! )))GLIHJI9HF7L)999HLGGHFLL)
!

Kf^!2$&,/(-$,+"*,(
M0*'5"/*%)./,'0$=*'$,,*,,*2')0*'$6"&")1'.-')0*'G./;./$)".#').'%.#)"#?*'.;*/$)"#I'$,'$'I."#I'%.#%*/#'
$#2' 6*&"*=*' )0$)' )0*' ;/*;$/$)".#' .-' )0*,*' -"#$#%"$&' ,)$)*+*#),' .#' $' I."#I' %.#%*/#' 6$,",' ",' ,)"&&'
$;;/.;/"$)*P' X.J*=*/O' )0*' 5"/*%)./,' 6*&"*=*' )0$)' ?#2*/' )0*' %?//*#)' *%.#.+"%' *#="/.#+*#)' $'
%.#)"#?.?,'$,,*,,+*#)'.-')0*'$6"&")1'.-')0*'G./;./$)".#').'%.#)"#?*').'.;*/$)*'$,'$'I."#I'%.#%*/#'
J"&&' #**2' ).' 6*' ;*/-./+*2' ).' 2*)*/+"#*' )0*' %.#)"#?*2' $;;/.;/"$)*#*,,' .-' )0*' I."#I' %.#%*/#'
$,,?+;)".#')0$)'0$,'6**#'$;;&"*2'"#')0*';/*;$/$)".#'.-')0*,*'-"#$#%"$&',)$)*+*#),P'

'
<,'$)'34'5*%*+6*/'7874O')0*'G./;./$)".#9,'%?//*#)'$,,*),'*`%**2*2'%?//*#)'&"$6"&")"*,'61'
LbEq@YO74DO@@q'R7878^'LbE'4YBOBH8OHBYSP'

'
M0*' n.=*/#+*#)' R,0$/*0.&2*/S' "#a*%)*2' s48' +"&&".#' "#' M/*$,?/1' 6"&&,' $,' %$;")$&' ).' )0*' *#)")1' "#'
!*6/?$/1'784BP'

'
>#')0*'*=*#)')0$)')0*'G./;./$)".#'",'-$%*2'J")0'$'0?I*';$1.?)'J0"%0'",'"#'*`%*,,'.-'$=$"&$6&*'-?#2,O'
)0*/*'$/*')0/**'.;)".#,')0$)'%$#'6*';?/,?*2'"#2"="2?$&&1'./'%.&&*%)"=*&1'$,'-.&&.J,^'

•! >#' )*/+,' .-' )0*' 5CG' <%)' ]G0$;)*/' 7@^7H_' (*%)".#' 34O' )0*/*' ",' $' ;/.=",".#' ).' &*=1'
,?;;&*+*#)$/1'%.#)/"6?)".#,'-/.+'$&&'6$#N"#I'"#,)")?)".#,').'-?#2')0*',0./)-$&&P'

•! >#' )*/+,'.-' )0*'5CG'<%)O' (*%.#2'(%0*2?&*'C$/$I/$;0'BO' )0*'G./;./$)".#'0$,'$#'$#%"&&$/1'
;.J*/').'6.//.J'+.#*1,'-./')0*';?/;.,*,'.-')0*'5CG'!?#2P'

•! >#'$',1,)*+"%'%/",",O')0$)'",O'$',")?$)".#'J0*/*'$'#?+6*/'.-'&$/I*'6$#N,'-$"&'$)')0*',$+*')"+*'
$#2')0*'-?#2'&*=*&'",'"#$2*\?$)*'*=*#'$-)*/'"#=.N"#I'R4S'$#2'R7S'$6.=*O')0*#'-?#2"#I'J"&&'6*'
;/.="2*2'61')0*'Q"#",)/1'.-'!"#$#%*'$#2'V%.#.+"%'5*=*&.;+*#)P'

DPC Annual Report 202173



Covid 19 pandemic statement
Impact on accounting policies
There has been no impact on accounting policies as the pandemic has merely resulted in the purchase of 
additional consumables such as sanitisers, masks and disinfectants.

Business impact
The Corporation operates in the banking sector which was declared by the Government to be an essential 
services sector and remained open for business albeit with reduced staff numbers at the premises. Staff have 
largely been working from home since March 2020. The Corporation made a seamless transition to remote 
working and came up with a working from home policy to give direction and provide guidelines. Staff have 
shown determination and enthusiasm operating in a virtual environment and have embraced the change fully.

The Corporation has been alive to the magnitude of the risk and has taken measures to mitigate the spread 
of COVID-19 pandemic. This has involved periodic disinfection of offices, procurement of thermometers for 
measuring temperature for staff and visitors entering the premise. Wearing of masks is mandatory for both 
staff and visitors and sanitisers have been placed at strategic locations inside and outside the offices.
Regarding the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the operations of the Corporation, it is reported that there 
have been minimal interruptions in the sense that remote working from home has been successful as staff 
have access to paid internet and WIFI interconnectivity facilities. The additional cost incurred in procuring 
Covid 19 consumables has largely been offset by savings on office supplies, consumables and utilities. In 
general, the nature of the operations is not significantly affected either way whether there is physical 
presence at the office or remote working.

Effect on the going concern
The going concern status of the Corporation has not been affected. The banks, who are our major customers 
are an essential service and have remained open. Premium payments by the banks have not been affected.
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